SCRUTINY

. Epping Forest District Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Thursday, 5th April, 2007

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
Time: 7.30 pm

Democratic Services Simon Hill, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Officer: email: shill@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 01992 564249
Members:

Councillors R Morgan (Chairman), Mrs J H Whitehouse (Vice-Chairman), D Bateman,
M Cohen, M Colling, R D'Souza, Mrs H Harding, P House, G Mohindra and
Mrs P Richardson

PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO ALL MEMBERS TO ATTEND

A PRE — MEETING FOR MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE WILL BE HELD AT 7.00PM

WEBCASTING NOTICE

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's internet site -
at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act. Data collected
during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s published policy and copies made
available to those who request it..

Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are consenting to being
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for web casting and/or training
purposes. If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper
council chamber public gallery area

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic Services Officer on 01992
564249.

1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION

1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate
their microphones before speaking.



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 5 April 2007
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement:
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the
Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing and copies of the recording could be
made available for those that request it.
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will
become part of the broadcast.

This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this
you should move to the upper public gallery”

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
3. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

(Head of Research and Democratic Services). To report the appointment of any
substitute members for the meeting.

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(Head of Research and Democratic Services). To declare interests in any items on the
agenda.

In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements.
This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member.
Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a
matter.
5. MINUTES (Pages 5 - 22)
Decisions required:
To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 8 March 2007.
6. PRESENTATION FROM AIDEN THOMAS - WEST ESSEX PRIMARY CARE TRUST
To be circulated separately.

7. 2006 - 07 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 23 - 56)

To consider the attached report.



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 5 April 2007

8.

10.

11.

12.

WORK PROGRAMME MONITORING (Pages 57 - 68)
Recommendation:

To adopt the attached 2007 — 08 Overview and Scrutiny Work
Programme.

At its last meeting on 8 March 2007, the Committee requested that a meeting be
arranged between the Chairman and the Vice — Chairman to formulate the 2007 — 08
OS work programme. The meeting was held on 22 March 2007.

The notes of the meeting and the programme they put together is attached for
consideration. The Committee is asked to endorse the plan for implementation in the
new Council year.

LEISURE TASK AND FINISH PANEL

(Chairman of Task and Finish Panel). To consider the report to follow.

OLDER AND DISABLED PERSONS TASK AND FINISH PANEL - FINAL REPORT
To consider the report to follow

CABINET REVIEW

Recommendation:

To consider any items to be raised by the Chairman at the Cabinet
meeting on 16 April 2007.

As the Cabinet agenda will not be available until after this meeting, the front sheet of
the agenda will be circulated prior to this meeting to enable the consideration of the
item.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information
Paragraph Number
Nil Nil Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24
hours prior to the meeting.



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 5 April 2007

Confidential ltems Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules
contained in the Constitution require:

1)

)

®3)

All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the
press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest.

At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the
completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed
to exclude the public and press.

Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the
completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for
report rather than decision.

Background Papers: Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(@)

(b)

disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the
advice of any political advisor.

Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer
responsible for the item.



Agenda Item 5

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MINUTES

Committee:  Overview and Scrutiny Committee Date: Thursday, 8 March 2007

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Time: 7.30 -9.45 pm
High Street, Epping

Members Councillors Mrs J H Whitehouse (Chairman) Mrs H Harding (Vice-Chairman)

Present: D Bateman, M Colling, R D'Souza, P House, Mrs P Richardson, K Chana
and R Frankel

Other Councillors K Angold-Stephens, Mrs D Borton, Mrs D Collins, Mrs A Cooper,

Councillors: A Green, Mrs A Grigg, A Lee, S Murray, B Sandler, Mrs M Sartin, D Stallan,
Mrs L Wagland, C Whitbread, J M Whitehouse and K Wright

Apologies: Councillors R Morgan, M Cohen, G Mohindra and M Woollard

Officers J Scott (Joint Chief Executive), J Gilbert (Head of Environmental Services),

Present: D Macnab (Head of Leisure Services), S G Hill (Senior Democratic Services
Officer), A Hendry (Democratic Services Officer), Z Folley (Democratic
Services Assistant) and S Mitchell (PR & Internet Assistant)

By D Millership (Essex CC), T Baker (Essex CC) and S Brooks (Essex CC)

Invitation:

74. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the
webcasting of its meetings. The Committee noted the Council's Protocol for
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings.

75. CHAIRMAN FOR THE MEETING

As the Chairman of the meeting Councillor Morgan was unavailable, the Vice
Chairman, Councillor Mrs Whitehouse took the Chair for the meeting.

76. APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN

Councillor Mrs H Harding was appointed Vice Chairman for the duration of the
meeting.

7. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

It was reported that Councillor R Frankel was substituting for Councillor M Woollard
and that Councillor K Chana was substituting for Councillor M Cohen.

78. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
a) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs M Sartin

declared a personal interest in agenda item 10 (Local Strategic Partnership (LSP)
Task and Finish Panel — Final Report) by virtue of being a member of the LSP Board.

Page 5



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 8 March 2007

79.

80.

She declared that her interests were not prejudicial and indicated that she would
remain in the meeting during the consideration of the item.

b) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs A Grigg
declared a personal interest in agenda item 10 (Local Strategic Partnership (LSP)
Task and Finish Panel — Final Report) by virtue of being a member of the LSP Board.
She declared that her interests were not prejudicial and indicated that she would
remain in the meeting during the consideration of the item.

) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor K Wright
declared a personal interest in agenda item 9 (Overview and Scrutiny Work
Programme) by virtue of being a member of Theatre Resources. He declared that
his interests were not prejudicial and indicated that he would remain in the meeting
during the consideration of the item.

d) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs J
Whitehouse declared a personal interest in agenda item 10 (Local Strategic
Partnership (LSP) Task and Finish Panel — Final Report) by virtue of being a member
of the learning partnership of the LSP. She declared that her interests were not
prejudicial and indicated that she would remain in the meeting during the
consideration and voting on the item.

e) Pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct, Councillor A Lee
declared a personal interest in agenda item 10 (Local Strategic Partnership (LSP)
Task and Finish Panel — Final Report) by virtue of being a member of the LSP. He
declared that his interests were not prejudicial and indicated that he would remain in
the meeting during the consideration of the item.

MINUTES

That the minutes of the Committee held on 1 February 2006 be taken as read and
signed by the Chairman as a correct record subject to the correction of the spelling of
Councillors Bateman name under minute number 69.

HIGHWAYS SERVICES - PRESENTATION

The Chairman welcomed Davina Millership, the Area Highways Manager for the
District, Spencer Brooks, Senior Traffic Engineer and Trevor Baker the Assistant
District Manager. They were attending the meeting to give a presentation and a
guestion and answer session on local highways issues.

Ms Millership started by saying that an area office is the implementation arm of
Highways and Transportation Section. They have strategic officers at County Hall
that put together programmes and get funding from Central Government. This is then
fed to the four area offices for practical implementation.

Generally the area offices carry out the day to day maintenance, e.g. resurfacing of
footways and carriageways, potholes, gulley cleansing and traffic management
schemes (including parking and general sighage). They also implement road safety
schemes and deal with Development Control, that is, schemes that have above five
and up to fifty properties are dealt with by the area offices. They also deal with street
lighting maintenance.

They have two main areas of funding for maintenance. One is a budget for basic
maintenance, e.g. pothole patching and this is a reactive maintenance budget. The

Page 6



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 8 March 2007

81.

82.

other is capital funding for larger/major construction schemes and this is spread over
a three year period. We are currently in the second year of the cycle. The first year
concentrates on ‘A’ roads; the second year concentrates on ‘A’ and ‘B’ roads; and the
third year on ‘B’ and unclassified roads.

The basic maintenance budget for 2005/06 was £2.5 million for the West Area Office
— of that 31% went to Epping in 2005/06, 2006/07 and 2007/08.

For Highways Maintenance, the West Area Office got 40% of the total amount for the
County — of which 52% went to Epping in 2005/06, 33% in 2006/07 and 46 in
2007/08. This was from a £8m budget for the West Area.

Area Offices report to a Local Programme Manager, John Burr who in turn reports to
Tony Ciaburro at County.

They run a Highways Panel twice a year that meets in the Harlow Offices and have a
£200,000 Local Determination budget for use in consultation with Local Councils.
They also use Section 106 money for specific projects and act as consultants to
Local Councils.

Davina Millership then answered questions from members on highways that were
sent to her prior to the meeting. The questions and answers are attached to these
minutes as an appendix.

FREE SATURDAY CAR PARKING - MONITORING ARRANGMENTS

The Head of Environmental Services reported back to this meeting on the provision
of regular operational reviews of the free car parking on Saturdays recently instituted.
He reported that they were to use the existing parking attendants to monitor use of
the car parks. They would be there at 10am and then again at mid afternoon to note
the registration numbers of any long stay vehicles, this could be accomplished at no
extra cost to the Council. A fuller feedback could be obtained from the Town Centre
Partnerships, for a longer term survey.

The Portfolio Holder for Civil Engineering and Maintenance, Councillor Green added
that initiative could be viewed in two ways, one, looking if the car parks were being
used in a manner we did not want, and two, as a way to enhance town centres and
assist traders, and this was where local ward members could provide feedback on
how it's working.

Councillor Jon Whitehouse asked if it could also be noted how many cars use the
parks and was assured that this would be done.

Councillor Frankel asked how long it would take to get meaningful feedback from this
survey and was told that they would be collecting data every Saturday. A view would
have to be taken on when the cut off point would be to get any meaningful data.

DRAFT 2006/07 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT
The Committee noted that this was a first draft of the annual report for 2006/07.
Comments were requested to be sent to Democratic Services by week ending 16

March 2007. It would then be amended and a final version put to the April meeting of
the Committee.

Page 7



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 8 March 2007

83.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME REVIEW

The committee noted that a new work programme was to be presented to the next
meeting. They were now asked to send in any new items for consideration by 19
March, when it would be considered under the PICK system. The Chairman and Vice
Chairman will sift through the new requests to determine if any new topics are to be
added to the work programme of the existing Standing Panels or to constitute new
task and Finish Panels.

Standing Panels

Councillor Colling proposed that with the current large workload on officers, was the
Customer Services and ICT Standing Panel still relevant as their workload had
shrunk over the last few months. Councillor Collins agreed that a lot of their work was
on hold at present, so it could be closed down and the remainder of their work could
be transferred to the Finance and Performance Management Standing Panel, until
their Customer Service work picks up again.

The Committee agreed that any outstanding work be re-evaluated and redistributed
to other panels.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Customer Services and ICT Standing Panel be disbanded
and its remaining workload be redistributed to other panels, principally to the
Finance and Performance Management Panel.

2. The Committee considered the other Standing Panels and agreed that
they should continue.

Task and Finish Panels

Leisure — the Chairman of the Panel Councillor Mrs Harding reported that the panel
would have completed three of the four tasks set out in its terms of reference, that is
the Review of the Future Management of the Roding Valley Meadows Local Nature
Reserve, the Review of Arts Development in the District and the District Council's
role and involvement in Outdoor and Community Events. They would need more time
to finish the Future Management of Waltham Abbey Sports Centre. A full report will
go to the next meeting of this committee.

Town Centre and Car Parks — the antisocial elements of this Panel's terms of
reference is still to be completed and probably continue into the new year.

Crime and Disorder — this Panel will be meeting again on 15 March and hopes to
wind up it's terms of reference by the end of this year.

Older Persons and Disabled Persons — this Panel is currently writing its final report,
which will come to the next meeting of this committee.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The work programme for the committee and the need for the Chairman of the LSP to
be invited to address the Committee on a yearly basis was noted.

Page 8



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 8 March 2007

84.

85.

Council Plan

Noted that a Value for Money Sub-group was currently meeting, and may call for an
in-depth service review.

Councillor Jon Whitehouse commented that he had just come from that sub-group
meeting and they had been looking at various areas of the Council but were
constrained by the data in front of them.

Two areas that did occur to the sub-group for further investigation was:

1) the external management of leisure facilities by SLM, and they would like
the Head of Leisure Services to bring a report to the Finance and
Performance Management Standing Panel on this; and

2) planning applications - to ask a small sub-group or Task and Finish Panel
to look at this under the Value for Money criteria.

The sub-group would recommend that a Task and Finish Panel could be set up in the
new year to look at the above items.

LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP TASK AND FINISH PANEL - FINAL
REPORT

The Committee received the final report of the Local Strategic Partnership Task and
Finish Panel. Councillor Mary Sartin, the Chairman of the Panel, introduced the
report and commended it to the meeting.

RESOLVED:

That the Local Strategic Partnership Task and Finish Panel Report be
endorsed.

CABINET REVIEW

The committee looked at the cabinet agenda for the meeting to be held on 12 March
2007. The only item of business they had for it was, on the consideration of the
Calendar of Meetings for 2007-08. At the recent Local Council’s Liaison Committee
meeting they had requested that provision be made by the District Council to leave
one night a week free of meetings. This was so that they hold their own individual
meetings to enable ‘dual-hatted’ Councillors to attend. The Local Councils thought
that this might be feasible now that four Area Planning Sub-Committees had been
reduced to three, thus freeing up some Wednesdays.

The Committee were sympathetic to Local Councils dilemma, but also acknowledged
that the District Council’s need for meetings should be paramount. They agreed that,
as far as possible some spare days be kept free of meetings to help Local Councils,
and this would be recommended to Cabinet.

RESOLVED:
That the Committee put to the Cabinet three alternatives, that the principle not
be agreed; or that where possible, the principle be agreed; or finally that the

principle be accepted. The Committee would recommend the second option
to the Cabinet.

Page 9



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 8 March 2007

CHAIRMAN

Page 10



Minute Item 80

OSC 8 March 2007 — List of Member Questions for Highways

€)) Highway Maintenance and Repair work

1. When are the pavements and roads in Chigwell going to repaired/resurfaced?
Many elderly residents living in Chigwell Row are finding it hard to cope with the poor
conditions.

Councillor B Sandler Chigwell Row

Response:

We do not carry out repairs by area however as and when individual defects
are reported they are dealt with. If these are localized then a large area of
patching is identified.

If there are any specific areas that Cllr Sandler would like to be flagged for
attention my Acting District Manager —Trevor Baker will attend a site meeting
to discuss.

| understand that we have identified some works on the route through Chigwell
Row — the details can be discussed with TB.

2. When will the road in School Green Lane, North Weald be repaired?
Councillor D Stallan — North Weald Bassett

Response:

TB is very busy and is currently covering for two posts. He is an outstanding
officer who is often the last one in the office and first one in the mornings.
Unfortunately working under pressure —things slip through which | can only
offer my apologies.

School Green Lane was inspected and does not require any works. Beamish
Close, works to the kerbs was carried out and some funding has been
allocated for further kerb works although this can be made available for other
repairs/works.

3. Why are the roads in the north of Essex so much better maintained than
those in the south? Is it because no account has been taken of relative traffic
volumes in each area? Are investment decisions based on road miles rather than
traffic miles?

Councillor K Angold — Stephens — Loughton Roding

Response:

Basic maintenance funding is set aside for potholes and patching and
allocations are based on a formula taking into account the length of county
roads (roads of more than local significance) and local roads in each district.
County roads receive a greater weighting in the formula.

The capital funding for carriageway and footway maintenance ( larger

schemes) is allocated taking into account of the results of our latest condition
survey but in recent years it has been apparent that a formulaic approach has

Page T1



not always reflected the anecdotal view of the areas road condition. So the
Portfolio Holder exercises his judgment.

4, Why hasn't the road repair work for Buckhurst Hill, to be implemented after
the resurfacing works to the Loughton High Road, been carried out especially as the
road surface is in a poor condition in places?

Councillor K Angold — Stephens — Loughton Roding
Response:
The Loughton High road works were carried out and funded by the District as
part of the Town Centre scheme. Buckhurst Hill will be machine surfaced in the
next few weeks.

5. How are you dealing with the unclassified but extremely busy roads (such as
Oakwood Hill) to ensure they are not ignored.

Councillor K Angold — Stephens — Loughton Roding
Response:
We have received more funding for unclassified roads this financial year and

we have identified work in our 07/08 programme. This programme is draft and
yet to be approved by our Cabinet Member.

(b) On Street Parking — Crossovers

6. What is the "official" position about whether resident's cars be parked in the
street or in driveways?

Councillor Roland Frankel - Theydon Bois

Response:

The only position the highway authority has on this is that residents have a
responsibility to park their cars legally and not to cause an obstruction. It is
their choice whether that is on a street or in driveways.

7. What strategies will be adopted to rectify sunken kerbs to stop cars parking
on pavements causing pedestrians to be placed in hazardous situations?. This
relates especially to Ongar High Street between the Post Office and Ongar Bridge

Councillor K Wright - Chipping Ongar, Greensted & Marden Ash

Response:

This can occur historically for many reasons. Where there is a low kerb height
which is deemed to be hazardous we are happy to look at assessing the
location with a view to addressing the issue. This can be achieved a few ways
depending upon the specific circumstances.

PBggel g



8. Has any strategy for addressing the problem of parking on pavements and
across car entrances, which is endemic near schools, been considered? If not will
one be? Chipping Ongar Primary School is a case in point. The use of bollards could
provide a solution

Councillor Keith Wright - Chipping Ongar, Greensted & Marden Ash

Response:

Parking on pavements where vehicles are causing an obstruction can be dealt
with by the Police who have enforcement powers. This is the same with
crossovers or car entrances. Where a waiting restriction exists this extends for
the full extent of the highway and therefore parking enforcement officers can
deal with cars parked on pavements.

The only other way of dealing with such as situation is to formalize parking in a
parking zone.

Chipping Ongar Primary School, does this school have a school travel plan? —
bollards and other measures can be introduced as part of such a plan. Itis
sensible that all school issues are raised and addressed as part of a formal
plan rather than ad hoc measures.

9. What responsibilities do Essex Highways have for bollards and how is
this provided? How many accidents have occurred within the vicinity of bollards in the
past three years?

Councillor Mrs J H Whitehouse — Epping Hemnall

Response:

Ultimately street furniture such as bollards is the responsibility of the highway
authority. This includes its location and maintenance. | cannot answer that as
personal injury accidents statistics are recorded on the basis of contributory
factors and you can search the database for specific factors. It is not usual to
note the accident in terms of its location relative to bollards — it is more usual
to note the vicinity of zebra crossings and whether it is dark/wet or road
surface is slippery. In my experience the location of the bollards would only be
listed as part of the description of the accident if it was relevant.

10. Why hasn’'t any emergency Traffic Regulation Orders been issued to deter all
day commuter parking which has driven some traders out of business and is causing
serious difficulties in Debden Broadway.

Councillor K Angold — Stephens — Loughton Roding
Response:
The Burton road car park is the subject of traffic orders which the District are
preparing and as part of this the District is seeking consent from the County.
The Cabinet member is being consulted along with County members on their
views although the process of producing the orders by the District is ongoing.
It has been raised that Commuters will be pushed into neighbouring roads
once excluded from the car parks and the County working with the District
have been carrying out parking surveys with a view to developing proposals to

Page 23



address the possible problems. This will off course be the subject of
discussion and consultation.

(c) Pot Holes

11. Why do some of our major roads such as Valley Hill and Oakwood
Hill (with major traffic flows) continue to have dangerous pot holes ?

Councillor S Murray, Loughton Roding

Response;

We continue to inspect and repair them. The frequency of pot holes is related
to the general structure of the road. It has been identified that Oakwood Hill be
resurfaced and we are keeping an eye on Valley Hill. We consider it a priority
and we will endeavour to identify funding as soon as we can.

(d) Footpaths

12. Why is a much used pedestrian footpath between Cheltanham Gardens
and Highland Avenue in Loughton still unpassable after heavy rain. No indication
has ever been given about when the work will be done even though both the ward
members and residents have frequently reported the issue.

Councillor S Murray, Loughton Roding/ K Angold — Stephens — Loughton
Roding

Response:

The unmade section has been identified for resurfacing and the made up
section has been inspected and we are currently considering what measures
need to be taken to address the problems.

(e Street Lighting

13. Why is a lamp column on a busy junction (Oakwood Hill , Valley Hill
and Roding Road) still not working?

Councillor S Murray, Loughton Roding

Response:

Lamp column 17 Roding Road lamp out was received on 15 Jan and completed
28 February 2007. The delay to repairing the outage was caused by the need to
use traffic management due to the location near to a busy junction.

Lamp column 44 Oakwood Hill lamp out 1° received on 18 November 2006 and
completed 23 January 2007. The second received 15 January and completed 28
February. Another call on 5 March from Clir Murray on Monday 5 march to
inform us that Lamp column 44 Oakwood Hill was still not working —
contractors attended Monday night and Tuesday morning and have assured us
that the job is complete.

Our Contractor should attend in 7 days initially however if there is further work
needed. We have raised performance issues formally with our contractor who

Page 18



has provided an undertaking to increase resources. | have recently recruited a
new member of staff who will be able to assist in monitoring the contractors
performance. We can report that already additional resources have been
allocated and we are hopeful that our contractor will continue to improve their
performance record.

14. What action will be taken to repair the two streetlight in North Weald (one in
School Green Lane and one in Beamish Close)

Councillor D Stallan — North Weald Bassett

Response:

North Weald Parish Council owns the lighting in Beamish Close and School
Green Lane. We have continued to manage the repair of the NWPC lighting as a
good will gesture. Given my problems with staffing | would like to bring this
relationship to an end.

Because of the arrangements these lights do not form part of the night time
scouting of the County lighting stock and we rely on reports of outages from
the Parish.

Beamish Close

We have not received a report of a day burner but we have received a number of
reports of outages over the last year;

L/C 6032 Lamp out received date 05/06/06 completed date 09/06/06 = 35w SOX lamp
L/C 6033A Unit leaning received date 24/11/06 completed date 19/12/06 = Replump
column

L/C 6028 Lamp out received date 24/11/06 completed date 15/12/06 = 35w SOX lamp &
ignitor

L/C 6030 Lamp out received date 04/12/06 completed date 18/12/06 = 35w SOX lamp &
ignitor

L/C 6026 Lamp out received date 18/12/06 completed date 15/01/06 = 35w SOX lamp
and photocell.

School Green Lane
We have not received notification of any faults since 12/10/05 for this road.

(Since the meeting | have been informed that the Parish reported it to a
consultant who attended a meeting on ECC’s behalf — it appears that this was
not reported to the office)

15. Will Highways reconsider the proposal to cut off street lighting across the
District over the later part of each night? The matter is also ready causing concern to
residents in the South of the District with the problems with antisocial behaviour and
the later opening hours of public houses. Without adequate lighting CCTV will not be
effective.

Councillor D Bateman Chigwell

Page 1%



Response:

You will be consultee on the part night switch off. It is currently only being
piloted in Uttlesford in the West Area.

Areas with CCTV are exempt from the switch off for those reasons

() Rural roads
15. What action will Essex County Council take to eliminate/ reduce the damage
caused to the County’s roads by Heavy Goods Vehicle should the additional funding
requested by the Portfolio for this work not be received?

Councillor Mrs A Cooper - Lower Nazeing
Response:

My district engineers do not perceive that this is a major issue in Epping
however we will continue to repair defects.

(9) Local Liaison Arrangements

16. When will the step to establish local repair teams for minor work (as promised
by the Portfolio Holder when he attended Loughton Town Council last year), be
implemented? When will the liaison promised between the District and Local
Councillors for addressing specific issues when re-surfacing takes place (e.g.
damaged verges) be put into effect?

Councillor K Angold — Stephens — Loughton Roding
Response:
Local repair teams for minor works are being discussed at present and we are
currently in discussions with our contractor on how they will resource this.
We have Highways Panel meeting when District Officers, District members and
local County members meet with me. | also meet your lead officer once a
month to update on progress and issues.
| am happy to meet

Councillor Bass has asked me to offer to facilitate a meeting with your
representatives in County Hall or at the Area Highways Office with the Service
Director for Highways, myself and with the Local County Members in
attendance.

17. How would Highways respond to an EFDC forum on which they were
represented, to list and prioritise approved schemes (such as lay — bys and parking
improvements) which would be surveyed and costed by Highways in a similar way to
which Housing have dealt with their land in the past?

Councillor K Angold — Stephens — Loughton Roding
Response:

Tony Ciaburro, our service Director, has recently offered to seek funding for
improvements in the Epping area. We are discussing priorities with John

Page 18



Gilbert and | know that he will be seeking your views. Once we have an
indication of where or what you want you have identified then we will cost your
the schemes and collate a bid.

() Telephone Enquiries

18. Why do some of your officers never reply to telephone messages?

Councillor S Murray, Loughton Roding

Response:

We have around 20 vacancies in an establishment of around 100. They are
currently filled by agency staff. We appear to be suffering from a large turnover
of certain staff mainly at inspector level and this puts additional workload
pressures on our existing staff. Not responding to telephone messages is one
of the issues — No-one does this deliberately and | know that | have gone for
days sometimes not being able to respond to individuals. Sometimes we need
a site visit before we can respond to another investigation into land ownership
and this then means there is a delay and 20 other messages are left. So yes, |
don’t deny that this happens but | can assure you that it is not deliberate.

We have given John Gilbert the direct lines for myself, Trevor Baker and
Spencer Brookes. Please use them if someone has not responded and will
endeavour to get aresponse.

19. Who should residents contact to report serious faults in pathways and roads?
Councillor K Wright - Chipping Ongar, Greensted & Marden Ash

Response:

We have a computerised system — so the office number will be manned and
will be responded to. All information will go on there and be actioned. If you
want to track progress then you can email Trevor Baker.

) Resources

20. Do you feel that this part of Essex with its dense population and
hence heavy traffic flows is obtaining its fair share of resources from the
central Essex pot ?

Councillor S Murray, Loughton Roding

Response:

Just looking at the capital for major projects — West Area received 40% of the
total allocation for Essex and 33% of this was allocated to Epping and 46% of
the total for the West Area will be allocated to Epping for next financial year.

Over the last three years Epping has received 31% of the total allocation for

Basic Maintenance. It is worth noting that the West Area which comprises of 4
districts.

Page 13



21. What is Highways doing about addressing the staff shortages in their West
Area offices?

Councillor K Angold — Stephens — Loughton Roding

Response:

We are currently using agency staff. We only filled 12 positions in Oct 06 after
arecruitment drive and still currently have 22 vacancies. Some of the positions
were filled by internal promotion leaving gaps in the structure behind them.
Also we have since have been given a further 4 members of staff in recognition
of deficiencies in our structure. The County have accepted that there are
significant issues with recruitment and are considering a recruitment and
retention package for West Area staff.

22. What is the annual budget for the provision of traffic signs (eg crossroads)?
Councillor Mrs J H Whitehouse — Epping Hemnall

Response:

I have £147,000 for minor works for the Area. New signs comes out of this
budget but maintenance and replacing stolen signs comes from basic
maintenance. This money | add to the LDB budget to make up around £200,000
a year for Epping. Epping gets the lion’s share of the LDB pot — roughly 33% of
the total allocation.

23. To what extent has the amount spent on the replacement of signs, due to
many being stolen, substantially affected the provision of new
signs?

Councillor Mrs J H Whitehouse — Epping Hemnall
Response:
It doesn’t — they come from different budgets. The replacement of stolen signs
does eat into the basic maintenance of roads and that includes patching and
potholes.

(h) Traffic/congestion

24. Does County Council feel that government policy to reduce car journeys is
working in Essex? What studies have be made to determine at which point traffic
density becomes unsafe?

Councillor R Frankel - Theydon Bois

Response:

Government transport policy in Essex is shaped by the influence fo the East of
England Plan and the County Council’s own Local Transport Plan. Both plans
include policies to manage a demand for travel and car travel in particular, and
the LTP contains targets to reduce traffic volumes entering Colchester and
Chelmsford, as well as the rate of growth in distance traveled across the
County area. At the same time land use policies continue to put pressure on
Essex to accommodate more housing and provide local employment

Page 18



opportunities as well as national priorities such as expansion of ports and
airports. So managing demand for car travel needs to consider both today’s
demands and those from future land use pressures, which are considerable.

Both sets of LTP targets are on track at present, with reductions observed
during 2005 and 2006. There may be many factors behind this trend but there is
no doubt that successful transport schemes such as park and ride, increased
cycle facilities, reduced travel to school by car, travel plans and quality bus
routes all contribute to reductions in car use.

IN conclusion policies do work at the local level but these local successes may
be tempered by a general rise in traffic growth caused by background trends
such as development pressures and the tendency for the average trip length to
rise over time.

25. What causes more pollution: a) stopped cars, b) stop/start congested traffic,
¢) constantly moving cars?

Councillor R Frankel - Theydon Bois

Response:

According to the Highways Agency Design Manual for Roads and Bridges
Vehicles operate most efficiently and produce least pollution when they are
driven in freely flowing traffic at moderate speed ( 35-30mph fro NOz
emissions)

Measurements have shown that the highest rates of emission occur in
congested, slow moving traffic, and that there is also a tendency for emission
rates to increase at high speeds, especially those of oxides of nitrogen.
Emissions rates under stop-start driving conditions are much higher than
those when vehicles are driven more slowly.

26. Since EFDC members permitted commercial development on Chigwell Lane,
is there now any possibility of a full M11 junction 5?
Councillor R Frankel - Theydon Bois

Response:
| cannot answer this but will endeavour to obtain a response.

27. Baring in mind the work to be carried out on the A414 from 12 March 2007,
why has there been no consideration of the fact the first bus leaves Ongar just after
6am and any delay will cause residents who use this first bus service to be delayed
getting to work?

Councillor D Stallan — North Weald Bassett
Response:

When closures occur over night from 9pm to 6am —there will not be a problem
as the first bus leave at 6.11am

Page 19



28. Should the cost of traffic disruption (for the road users) be an issue for the
time taken on repairs?

Councillor R Frankel - Theydon Bois

Response:

Yes, and we take this into account. Road works are programmed to avoid peak
periods and we will try to do the most disruptive work at off peak periods.
This is also taken into account when we allow utilities to work on the highway.

() Road Safety
29. At the end of 2006, the total number of road deaths in Essex County Council

reached 101. Can Essex Transport confirm the total number of deaths in this District
and provide a breakdown of how many occurred on:

a) National Motorways and Primary Routes
b) County Primary Routes 1 and 2
C) Local Routes?

Councillor Mrs A Cooper - Lower Nazeing
Epping Fatalities — 17

M11 — double fatality

M11

M25

M25

A104 from Woodford Green
Al1l13 London Road

A113 j/w High Road

A113 Double Fatality

A121 towards Honey Lane
A414 towards Harlow

B194

B194 crooked Mile

B181 High Road

B181

Unclassified Theydon Road
Trunk Road- 5

County Routes-10

Local Roads-1

(k) General

30. When will we be assured of a quicker response to local issues and a better
service from highways?

Councillor K Angold — Stephens — Loughton Roding

Page 20



32. Are you beginning to understand why local residents and some district
councillors are very dissatisfied with the level of service provided by Essex
Highways ?

Councillor S Murray, Loughton Roding

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 23



Agenda Item 7

Report to Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of meeting: 5 April 2007 o

Subject: Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for 2006/07 S C RUTl N Y

Officer contact for further information: F
Adrian Hendry, Ext.4246 Epplng Forest District Council

Committee Secretary: Z Folley (ext 4532)

Recommendations/Decision Required:

That the attached Annual Overview and Scrutiny Report for 2006-07 reporting the work
undertaken during the past municipal year be agreed and submitted to the Full Council
at its meeting on 24 April 2007.

Introduction:

1. Further to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 8 March 2007, the
attached annual report has been amended incorporating the comments made by the
committee at that meeting. The document has also been type set into its final version. The
meeting is now asked to agree the report so it can be referred to the full Council meeting on
24 April 2007.

2. This report is produced in accordance with Overview and Scrutiny procedure Rule 20
of the Constitution that requires an annual report to be submitted to the Council in April each
year.

3. This is the sixth annual report to the Council, and the second under the new scrutiny
regime instituted by the Council in April 2005, incorporating the Scrutiny Standing and the
Task and Finish Panels.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Overview and Scrutiny
Annual Report
2006-2007

@ Epping Forest District Council

Page 25



N

SCRUTINY

Contents Page

Introduction 3
What is Scrutiny 3
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee 4
Standing Scrutiny Panels 5
Task and Finish Panels 5
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee 6
Standing Panels
The Housing Standing Panel 10
Constitution and Member Services Standing Panel 12
Customer Services and ICT Standing Panel 14
Finance and Performance Management Standing Panel 16
Environmental and Planning Services Standing Panel 18
Task and Finish Panels
Leisure Task and Finish Panel 22
Crime and Disorder Task and Finish Panel 24
Local Strategic Partnership Task and Finish Panel 25
Services for Older People and Disabled People Task and Finish Panel 26
Town Centre and Car Parks Task and Finish Panel 27
Travellers Issues 29
Conclusion 31

e
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007 2

Page 26



AN

SCRUTINY

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT 2006/2007

Introduction

This is the second report under the new Overview and Scrutiny Structure as instituted by the Full Council
in April 2005.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed to the setting up of five Standing Panels this year and five
new Task and Finish Panels.

Overview and Scrutiny had implemented a training programme for councillors, delivered by a consult-
ant who helped develop the councillor’s skills on running scrutiny, asking relevant questions and probing
deeper into issues that affect the Council and the wider community as a whole. This has led to a more
professional and comprehensive examination of the areas they were asked to scrutinise.

What is Scrutiny?

Scrutiny in local government is the mechanism by which public accountability is exercised. The purpose
of scrutiny in practice is to examine, question and evaluate in order to achieve improvement. The value
of scrutiny is in the use of research and questioning techniques to make recommendations based on
evidence. Scrutiny enables issues of public concern to be examined. At the heart of all the work is consid-
eration of what impact the Cabinet’s plans will have on the local community. However, the overview and
scrutiny function is not meant to be confrontational or seen as deliberately set up to form an opposition
to the Cabinet. Rather the two aspects should be regarded as ‘different sides of the same coin’. The two
should compliment each other and work in tandem to contribute to the development of the authority.

The 3 key principles of effective scrutiny in practice are:
. Scrutiny as “critical friendship” through constructive but robust internal challenge;
. Scrutiny as evidence based research and analysis using expert withesses and public consultation;

. Scrutiny as a strategic programme investigating key council priorities and reflecting the concerns of
the local community.

e
3 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007

Page 27



N

SCRUTINY

Scrutiny at Epping Forest utilises the ‘PICK’ system when setting its priorities. PICK stands for:
P = Public interest: the concerns of local people should influence the issues chosen;

I = Impact: issues that make the biggest difference to the social, economic and environmental wellbeing
of the district;

C = Council Performance: areas in which the Council and other agencies are not performing well;

K= Keep in Context: need to avoid duplication and wasted effort in identifying issues.

Alongside its challenge role, the scrutiny function has also continued to engage positively with the Cabinet
and there continues to be strong cross party political co-operation between members on all panels.

Scrutiny has continued to provide valuable contributions to the Council following a change to the admin-
istration to a two party administration in 2006. The Cabinet remained receptive to ideas put forward by
Scrutiny throughout the year.

At the first meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in May 2006 the committee reviewed their
procedures following the training received. The meeting decided to continue the new arrangements and
agreed the membership of panels.

Members were reminded that under the arrangements Scrutiny Standing and Task and Finish Panels had
been established to undertake scrutiny reviews. The Committee had been tasked with agreeing the Mem-
bership of these panels, their terms of reference, work plans and reporting deadlines. Although the panels
have no powers to make decisions they can put forward recommendations for consideration, either by the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee or Cabinet or Council.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee reviews the need for the continuation of Standing Panels prior to
the end of the Council Year.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Committee coordinated with the Cabinet about their work plans for the year and pre-scrutinised their
reports at its meetings during the week before Cabinet met. Liaisons with the Cabinet would take place to
discuss the wider work programme that would be approved and reviewed annually. This acted as a trou-
bleshooting exercise, finding out problems before they arose.

The Committee also engaged with external bodies in order to scrutinise parts of their work that encroached
on the District and its people.

The Committee considered two call-ins this year (for details see Scrutinising and Monitoring Cabinet work
on page 7), the first was on the Cabinet decision on the maximum length of cross-overs in May 2006 and
secondly on the Cabinets decision on Free Saturday Parking in January 2007.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee membership consists of 11 Councillors who were appointed at the
Annual Council meeting.

e
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007 4

Page 28



AN

SCRUTINY

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Panels

Standing Scrutiny Panels

Members agree terms of reference of panels and priorities of reviews and their work plans. A Lead Officer
was appointed to oversee each panel to facilitate its process.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed the work programme and terms of reference for each of the
Panels on the basis of a rolling programme. The Standing Panels have a ‘rolling programme’ and would
consider ongoing and cyclical issues. Five standing Scrutiny Panels were established, dealing with:

i. Housing

ii. Constitution and Member Services

iii. Customer Services and ICT

iv.  Finance and Performance Management
V. Environmental and Planning Services

Standing Panels reported regularly to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on progress with the work
they were carrying out.

Task and Finish Panels

The Task and Finish reviews are restricted to dealing with activities which are issue based, time limited,
non-cyclical with clearly defined objectives and are set a deadline to report to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee. The Panel reports on its progress as necessary. Five Task and Finish Panels were established
during the year, they were:

i Leisure Task and Finish Panel;

ii. Crime and Disorder Task and Finish Panel;

iii.  Local Strategic Partnership Task and Finish Panel,

iv.  Services for Older Persons and Disabled Persons Task and Finish Panel;
V. Town Centre and Car Parks Task and Finish Panel.

The Task and Finish Panel on Travellers Issues that had begun during the municipal year 2005/06 carried
on in this year, finishing in July 2006.

Task and Finish Panels are required to regularly report to the Committee on progress with the work they
are carrying out.

e
5 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007

Page 29



N

SCRUTINY

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

Introduction by the Chairman:

“This is the second year of the Council’'s new scrutiny system
breaking down the topics being scrutinised into Standing and Task
and Finish Panels and the main Overview and Scrutiny Commit-
tee, enabling a larger workload to be tackled and scrutinised. This
has proved to be a very successful way of working through the
large amount of topics that a Council’'s Scrutiny structure is asked
to consider over an average year.

As the Overview and Scrutiny Committee we have taken on nu-
merous topics, including looking at the Epping Forest College,
the Draft Council Plan for 2006-10, the proposed service levels at
Whipps Cross University Hospital and the Police merger propos-
als. Also, a few days before each Cabinet meeting we meet to pre-
scrutinise their agenda, enabling us to pre-empt any decisions and
if need be, invite that member of the Cabinet to attend our meeting
to answer any questions or concerns that we have about a particu-
lar report.The committee also has responsibility for determining
the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Work Programme and receiving regular reports from the Standing and
Task and Finish Scrutiny Panel Chairmen. This is my first year as Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee and as luck would have it, the Council began web-casting some of its meetings from the sum-
mer of 2006. This meant that our Committee was available to watch live on the web or at a later date, thus
opening up the meeting to a much wider public than would be normally be the case. This, | understand, is
proving to be a much appreciated resource, well used by the public.

| would like to take this opportunity to give my personal thanks to all the people from outside organisations
who visited our Committee and Panels during the last year and gave us the benefit of their expertise and
answered our (hopefully) pertinent and probing questions. We were very grateful that they took the time
to help us out.

| would also like to express my thanks to my Vice-Chairman, Councillor Mrs Janet Whitehouse, the mem-
bers of the O&S Committee, all the Chairmen of the Standing and Task and Finish Panels, the members of
those panels and of course all the officers who support the Panels and my Committee and make our jobs
that much more manageable.

I would like to take this opportunity to play particular tribute to the work of John Scott in developing Over-
view and Scrutiny at Epping Forest District Council over the last few years. Without his outstanding con-
tribution we would not be in the position we enjoy today with Overview and Scrutiny Committee providing
such effective monitoring of Cabinet decsions, constructive detailed policy development on behalf of the
whole Council and strong relationships with our Community Partner Organisations”

Councillor Richard Morgan
April 2007

e
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007 6

Page 30



AN

SCRUTINY

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee consisted of the following members:

Councillor R Morgan (Chairman)

Councillor Mrs J Whitehouse (Vice Chairman)

Councillors D Bateman, M Cohen, M Colling, R D'Souza, Mrs H Harding, P House,
G Mohindra, Mrs P Richardson and M Woollard.

The Lead Officer was John Scott, Joint Chief Executive (Community Services).

Terms of Reference

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s main functions are to monitor and scrutinise the work of the ex-
ecutive and its forward plan, external bodies linked to the District Council and the Council’s financial per-
formance. It is tasked with the consideration of call-ins, policy development, performance monitoring and
reviewing corporate strategies.

The Committee’s workload over the past year can be broken down as follows:

(a) Scrutinising and monitoring Cabinet work

The Committee reviewed and commented on the Cabinet’s Forward Plan and identified areas for further
consideration. The Committee has a proactive role in this area through carrying out pre-scrutiny work. This
involved receiving and considering the Cabinet agenda prior to the Cabinet itself.

The Committee considered two call-ins this year, the first was on the Cabinet decision on the maximum
length of cross-overs in May 2006 and secondly on the issue of the Cabinets decision on Free Saturday
Parking in January 2007, neither of the call-in were supported and the original decisions stood.

The first call-in was originally considered by the Task and Finish Panel on residential parking. Part of
their recommendations being that the maximum length of a crossover remains at 6 metres. The Cabinet
endorsed this, acknowledging that the Task and Finish Panel had considered all aspects of this topic.
However this part of the report was called-in by some members who thought it to be inflexible in the face
of parking hardships of the residents and the public concern this generated. On balance the Committee
supported the views of the Task and Finish Panel and the Portfolio Holder.

The second call-in on the provision of free Saturday parking was not at issue with the decision but that the
Cabinet failed to properly consider and justify the decision, in particular the financial aspects of the deci-
sion. Also, the criteria for the review had not been established so that the success of the scheme could not
be properly measured and there had been insufficient consultation with Town and Parish Councils and lo-
cal ward members. After debating the decision taken and the call-in arguments the Committee agreed with
the Cabinet’s decision to provide free Saturday parking. However, the Committee did ask that the Portfolio
Holder report back to them on the review procedures that were put in place.

(b) Standing Panels work programme monitoring

The Committee received regular updates from the Chairmen of the various Scrutiny Panels to report on the
progress made with their current work. This has allowed the Committee to monitor performance, prioritise

e
7 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007

Page 31



N

SCRUTINY

work and when necessary adjust their work plans to take into account new proposals and urgent items.

(c) Items considered by the committee this year

This year the Overview and Scrutiny Committee received presentations on and considered such topics
as:

(i) A presentation by the Principal of Epping Forest College, David Butler and Roger Neville, the Chair-
man of the College Board, on its future plans and development. The college is seeking to develop part
of its site to facilitate redevelopment of the college campus. The Committee, as well as commenting on
these plans, also scrutinised the alleged problems posed by the students to the surrounding area. The
Committee talked through these issues with the college and got a better understanding of the college’s
problems.

(i)  The Committee also received a presentation by Councillor R Chambers, Chairman of the Essex
Police Authority and Mr R Paddock the Deputy Chief Executive and Treasurer, on the proposed merger of
Bedford, Essex and Hertfordshire Police areas. The Committee scrutinised the proposal and submitted a
response to the consultation exercise being carried out by the Government, stating in the strongest terms,
their opposition to the proposed merger. In the end it was hoped that the Committee’s recommendations
were taken into consideration by the government and helped in their decision not to go ahead with the
proposed merger.

(i)  The Committee considered recommendations of the Constitution and Member Services Panel on
their review of the structure and membership of the Area Plans Sub-committees. The Committee rejected
their proposal that no change be made to the structure of the Sub—committees and proposed that the
present Area Sub—committees ‘B’ and ‘C’ be combined. The Committee considered that such a recon-
figuration was required to balance out the workload of the Sub—committees and shorten the timescale
for dealing with the cases, which the study revealed as issues of concern. The Committee supported the
recommendation that all members of the Council should be members of their local Sub—committee. Their
recommendations have since been endorsed by the Council for implementation from the start of the new
Council year.

i(v) The Committee considered and commented on the draft Council Plan for 2006-10. They endorsed
the key measures contained within the plan and made comments on several sections of the plan to be
passed on to the Cabinet for their consideration.

(v) The Committee met the Local Commissioner for Children and Young People (CYPSP) Ms Lonica
VanClay twice during the year, the second time she was accompanied by Ms G Mann (the Children’s Com-
missioning Manager for the West Essex Primary Care Trust) . On her first visit she reported on her role in
the identification and commissioning of services for the 0-19 age range. The second time she reported to
the committee, updating the structure of the CYPSP and the developments on the developments of Chil-
dren’s Services within the District.

(vi) The Cabinet were invited to present their plans for the year ahead, the Committee considered the
schedules with a view to selecting issues for pre-decision scrutiny. They hope to develop this role over the
next year.

(vii) The Committee received a presentation from James Slater, the Deputy Chief Executive of Waltham

e
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007 8

Page 32



AN

SCRUTINY

Forest Primary Care Trust, Mr Alan Clarke of the Barking and Dagenham PCT, Aidan Thomas, Chief Ex-
ecutive of the West Essex PCT and Mrs Catherine O’'Connell, Locality Director, West Essex PCT, on the
‘Fit for the Future’ review of Northeast London Healthcare, currently being undertaken by the Northeast
London Strategic Health Authority. Resulting from this the Council appointed a member representative to
the proposed Joint Security Committee being set up by four London Boroughs, Havering, Redbridge, Bark-
ing and Dagenham and Waltham Forest. This is due to meet in April 2007 and the Committee awaits the
results with interest. This will be a first for the Council, participating in a cross border scrutiny.

(viii) Chief Superintendent Andy Adams, the Divisional Commander for Essex Police gave a presentation
on their Neighbourhood Policy Initiative and wider issues. He attended the Committee twice during the
year coming back to report on progress with local initiatives and wider policing issues.

(ix) The Committee considered a report of the Task and Finish Panel on Town Centres and Car Parks,
making early recommendations to the Cabinet concerning the development of the new parking enforce-
ment contract.

(x) Committee invited Ms Davina Millership, the Area Highways Manager for the district, to the meeting
to answer questions from committee members and non-committee members on the state of the roads in
the district. This was one of the most well attended meetings of the year and provoked a large number of
guestions from members.

e
9 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007

Page 33



N

SCRUTINY

HOUSING STANDING PANEL

Introduction by the Chairman:

“This is my second year as Chairman of the Housing Standing
Panel and again we have had a busy year looking at various
Housing Strategies and schemes. In addition we also undertook
ongoing monitoring of various housing activities.

As always | would like to thank the Councillors and officers who
have put in such hard work to help make this Scrutiny Panel run
smoothly in carrying out its important role in scrutinising the Hous-
ing Services of Epping Forest District. My special thanks to Mrs
Molly Carter, the Chairman of the Tenants and Leaseholder Feder-
ation who also attends our meetings as a member of the Panel.”

Councillor Stephen Murray
April 2007

The Housing Standing Panel consisted of the following members:

Councillor S Murray (Chairman)

Councillor Mrs R Gadsby (Vice Chairman)

Councillors K Angold-Stephens, D Bateman, Mrs P Brooks, Mrs D Borton, Mrs H Harding, Mrs J Lea, G
Mohindra, Mrs P Richardson, Mrs J H Whitehouse and J Wyatt.

The Lead Officer was Alan Hall, Head of Housing Services. The Panel also appreciated the Housing Port-
folio Holder, Councillor D Stallan, attending the meetings to help them with their deliberations.

Mrs Molly Carter, the Chairman of the Tenants and Leaseholder Federation, who attends the meetings as
a non-voting co-opted member to provide the views of residents and stakeholders, assisted the Panel.

Terms of Reference

The Housing Standing Panel is tasked to undertake reviews of a number of the Council’s public and private
sector housing policies and to make recommendations arising from such reviews to the Housing Portfolio
Holder or cabinet as appropriate. They also undertake specific projects related to public and private sector
housing issues, as directed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

The Panel scrutinised a number of important issues over the last year, which
included:

(i)  The Choice Based Letting Scheme — the Council had agreed to work in partnership with five other
local authorities, creating a consortium of six authorities, Brentwood BC, Broxbourne DC, Chelmsford
BC, East Herts DC, Epping Forest DC and Uttlesford DC. The scheme would advertise any vacancies in

e
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007 10

Page 34



AN

SCRUTINY

the housing stock of the relevant authorities. The people on the housing register could then express their
interest in any property advertised. The Panel considered the proposed scheme and were advised of its
implementation and use throughout the year.

(i)  Housing Services Strategy on Empty Council Dwellings — the Panel considered the Council’s strat-
egy on the amount of time council dwellings are kept empty between tenancies, that these are kept to
a minimum and to assist the Council in discharging its duty to people who are homeless or otherwise in
housing needs. The Tenant and Leaseholders federation had already considered and had supported this
strategy.

(i) Empty Property Strategy — they considered
and commented on the draft Empty Property Strat-
egy, which set out the action the council intends
to take to bring long-term empty homes back into
use. The Panel asked that officers put in extra
safeguards into the report that went to cabinet to
stop landlords receiving more than one grant per

property.

(iv) Private Sector Housing Strategy — the Panel
looked at and commented on, the draft strategy
that will lead to substantial changes in the en-
forcement of the Private Sector Housing Stand-
ards and the arrangements for giving financial as-
sistance to promote the repair and improvement of
sub-standard private sector housing.

(v) Housing Service Strategy on Harassment — the Panel considered the strategy on harassment relat-
ing to the Council’'s approach to dealing with acts or allegations of harassment involving members of the
public who are recipients of housing services. Housing Services condemns all forms of harassment and
bullying and recognises that harassment is defined by the impact on the victim of harassment, not by the
intentions of the alleged perpetrator.

(vi) Housing Service Strategy on Equality and Diversity — the Panel reviewed the Council’s strategy on
how the Council proposed to promote equality and diversity in line with the Council's Corporate Equality
and Diversity Policy.

(vii) Housing applicants Ethnic Monitoring — reviewing the ethnicity of applicants on the housing register
compared with the ethnicity of those allocated accommodation.

e
11 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007

Page 35



N

SCRUTINY

CONSTITUTION AND MEMBER
SERVICES STANDING PANEL

Introduction by the Chairman:

“This year we looked at a variety of topics including reviewing the fu-
ture shape of our Council meetings, how we could improve our Civic
Ceremonial functions and how to improve the structure of our Area
Planning Sub-Committees, which proved to be a contentious issue,
with every member holding their own strong views on their future.

I would like to express my thanks to my Vice Chairman, Councillor
Mitch Cohen for his valuable support over the year and of course, to
the members of the panel for their important contributions.”

Councillor Richard Morgan
April 2007

The Constitution and Member Services Standing Panel consisted of the fol-
lowing members:

Councillor R Morgan (Chairman)

Councillor M Cohen (Vice Chairman)

Councillors Mrs P Brooks, R Church, R D’'Souza, J Demetriou, Mrs A Haigh, J Markham, Mrs P Richard-
son, Mrs P Smith and Mrs L Wagland.

The Lead Officer was lan Willett, Head of Research and Democratic Services.

Terms of Reference

To undertake reviews of constitutional, civic, electoral and governance matters and services for members
on behalf of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and to report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee,
the Council and the Cabinet with recommendations on matters allocated to the Panel as appropriate.

The Panel scrutinised a number of important issues over the last year, which
included:

(i)  Area Planning Sub-committees, Review of Structure — the Panel considered the structure of the Area
Planning Sub-committees. The review stemmed from the desire to give all Members a place on their local
Sub-committee and the need to even out their workload. The Panel canvassed all Members and the Lo-
cal Councils who expressed strong support for the retention of the area based structure. Some proposed
that the rural wards should be dealt with by a Sub—committee specifically for such areas to facilitate their
needs. The Panel heard from planning officers who clarified that any reduction in the number of Sub—com-
mittees might marginally quicken the process for determining applications and help us secure our Best
Value targets. The Panel considered the merits of a number of alternative structures submitted by Mem-
bers but felt that they would not solve the issues behind the review. Having rejected the alternatives they
recommended that the present structure of the Sub- committee be retained. The Panel paid particular

e
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007 12

Page 36



AN

SCRUTINY

attention to the proposal that all Members be members of their Sub—committee as requested by many
Members. Given the support for the idea, they felt that the change was necessary but sought the views
of the Sub—committee itself on how the expansion could work. Both the Sub—committee and the Council
have approved the proposals to come into effect in May 2007.

(i) Council Meetings, Review of Future Role — the Panel also changed the rule for debate at Council
meetings to enable back-bench members to question their Cabinet colleagues without notice. This has
enabled them to ask question on topical issues and hold the Portfolio Holders to account on any pressing
issue. The Members have expressed support for this new opportunity, which has been in place for several
months. The Panel also introduced State of the District and Single Issue debates. The first of which will
be held on the new government white paper which seeks to make key changes to local government. The
forum will provide an ideal opportunity for Members to learn more about the paper and consider how we
should respond to the challenges.

(i) May 2006 Elections — the Panel reviewed the May 2006 elections covering the electronic electoral
pilot, turnout, polling stations, postal votes, spoilt ballot papers, police liaison, complaints, the count and
budget issues.

(iv) Review of Civic Ceremonial — The Panel set up a subgroup to undertake an in-depth review of the
Civic Ceremonial function. The review revealed that the Chairman’s Office had, over a number of years
been supported by additional working hours by the Chairman’s Secretary, without which many of the Coun-
cil’s high quality events would not have been delivered. The Panel secured further support through the
budget process to better reflect the staffing required for the events. The Panel have also reviewed the use
of a civic car. Whilst many districts run a full time vehicle for the Chairman’s use, we rely on a hire car when
the function requires the use of a car. This budget had not kept pace with increasing costs and placed the
Chairman at particular disadvantage
and we have agreed with our Cabinet
colleagues, a modest increase in this
budget. The review also covered the
safe custody of the Civic Regalia, Civic
Hospitality and Retiring Gifts for long
serving Councillors.

(v) Reuse of Public Sector Informa-
tion Regulations - the Panel reviewed
the draft policy for the reuse of public
sector information held by the Council
and how it would respond to any re-
quests that would be difficult without a
policy, which reflected the requirements
of the regulations.

(vi) Audit and Governance Committee — the Panel reviewed the need for and agreed to, the setting up
of an independent Audit and Governance Committee. This independent Member group is to provide an
effective challenge to the executive, conduct independent scrutiny reviews of the Council’s financial affairs
and effective leadership on governance.

e
13 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007

Page 37



N

SCRUTINY

CUSTOMER SERVICES AND ICT
STANDING PANEL

Introduction by Chairman:

“This is my first year as the Chairman of this Panel, which has proved
to be an interesting and informative experience. One of the main
tasks we undertook this year was to get the pilot for the Council to
webcast some of its meetings, off the ground. This was started in the
summer of 2006 and has proved to be a very successful in bringing
our important meetings to a wider public audience.

I would like to thank my Vice Chairman (Councillor Mrs Kay Rush)
for all her help during the year and of course the Lead Officer for this
Panel, Adrian Scott.”

Councillor Mrs Maggie McEwen
April 2007

The Customer Services and ICT Standing Panel consisted of the following
members:

Councillor Mrs M McEwen (Chairman)

Councillor Mrs K Rush (Vice Chairman)

Councillors Mrs D Borton, R Church, M Cohen, R D’'Souza, Mrs C Pond, Mrs P Richardson, Mrs P Smith,
Mrs L Wagland and J M Whitehouse.

The Lead officer was Adrian Scott, Head of Information and Communication Technology.

Terms of Reference

(1) To consider the introduction of a Customer Services Transformation Programme* (CSTP) on behalf
of the Customer Services, Media, Communications and ICT Portfolio Holder and to make any resulting
recommendations to the Portfolio Holder or Cabinet as appropriate.

(2) To consider the specific ICT role within the CSTP and agree which elements of this project should be
monitored and reviewed by other O&S panels/committee.

(3) To consider the business case and technical proposals for all major ICT systems on behalf of the
Customer Services, Media, Communications and ICT Portfolio Holder prior to consideration by Cabinet.

(4) To monitor and review progress on the implementation of all major ICT systems.

e
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007 14

Page 38



AN

SCRUTINY

(5) To report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the Council and the Cabinet with recommenda-
tions on matters allocated to the Panel.

*The Portfolio Holder has agreed to temporarily suspend the CSTP in order for the Council to give re-
source priority to other projects in light of the Council’s current financial position.

The Panel scrutinised a number of important issues over the last year, which
included the following positive outcomes:

Customer Services Transformation Programme — the Panel received a report from an outside consulting
firm on the proposed phased implementation of the Customer Contact Centre. They made some very im-
portant comments on the possible structure of the plans which were subsequently considered and agreed
as appropriate concerns by the Cabinet. Should the CSTP subsequently be re-introduced by the Cabinet
the Panel would continue their monitoring role again next year.

Webcasting Pilot — a webcasting pilot had been agreed as part of its 2005/06 e-government strategy. The
Panel were consulted early in the year on the webcasting pilot and helped set down a protocol. Later in
the year they received an interim report on the encouraging first few months of the pilot. They considered
and agreed officer proposals for full
evaluation in the summer of 2007
and proposals to extend the current
contract until March 2008 using ex-
isting revenue funding.

Replacement of the Local Taxation
and Benefits ICT System — The
Panel considered a draft report to
the Cabinet on the replacement
of the Local Taxation and Benefits
ICT System. Their monitoring role
continues into the new year and
they will report as necessary on
this project and other major ICT
systems into next year.

ICT Desktop Strategy 2007-2009  \yepcasting of Planning Subcommittee A from Roding Valley
— At their February 2007 meeting High School

the Panel received proposals for

the three year desktop strategy. The

desktop strategy brings a formal ap-

proach to the procurement of both the IT equipment and software. The Strategy will contribute to the Coun-
cil’s cross cutting efficiency agenda by driving down IT costs whilst ensuring that all staff have access to
the appropriate and adequate level of IT to carry out their job function. The Panel positively endorsed this
strategy.

e
15 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007

Page 39



N

SCRUTINY

FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MAN-
AGEMENT STANDING PANEL

Introduction by Chairman:

“This Panel’s task is to keep a watchful eye on the Council’s finances
and its performance. We have also found our workload heavily influ-
enced by the need to tick Audit Commission boxes. This has led to
some heavy agendas and there is further work to be done in ensuring
that members find meetings relevant and interesting whilst still cover-
ing the full range of the council’s activities.

| would like to thank my vice Chairman James Hart for the support
he provided during the year and, of course, the lead officers for their
invaluable help and advice.”

Councillor Jon Whitehouse
April 2007

The Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel consisted of the
following Members:

Councillor 3 M Whitehouse (Chairman)

Councillor J Hart (Vice Chairman)

Councillors Mrs R Gadsby, R Church, M Colling, Mrs A Cooper, R D'Souza, P House, D Jacobs and R
Morgan.

The Lead Officers were Tony Tidey, Head of Human Resources and Performance Management and Bob
Palmer, Head of Finance.

Terms of Reference

0 To review Best Value Performance Indicator (BVPI) and Local Performance Indicator (LPI) and to
make recommendations for corrective action in relation to poorly performing BVPIs and LPlIs;

o] To consider and make recommendations as appropriate on the Council’'s annual Best Value Perform-
ance Plan;

0 To undertake a full review of the existing Council Plan and to make recommendations to the Cabi-
net;

0 To develop arrangements to directly engage the community in commenting on and shaping the future
direction of services to make them more responsive to local needs, including the development of proposals
for effective consultation through an annual community conference and to annually review the consultation
exercises undertaken by the council over the previous year;

o] To consider the draft budgets for each portfolio and to consider financial monitoring reports on key
areas of income and expenditure for each portfolio.

The Panel scrutinised a number of important issues over the last year, which

e
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007 16

Page 40



AN

SCRUTINY

included:

()  The Key Performance Indicators for 2005/06 and 2006/07. Of the 100 or so performance indicators,
the Cabinet chose 40 of these as Key Performance indicators and aimed for at least 40% of these indica-
tors to be in the top quartile (i.e. to match or exceed the performance of the best 25% of district councils
for that indicator). The Panel noted that the indicators for 2005/06 were comfortably above their targets.
The Panel’s scrutiny has revealed problems with some indicators which we hoped will be resolved when
the basket of indicators is next reviewed;

(i) Examining the Gershon Backward Looking Statement for 2004/05, which detailed efficiency savings
made by the Council and was submitted to the Department for Communities and Local Government;

(i) Reviewing the levels of income generated from Local Land Charges search fees, and how the sec-
tion is dealing with the recent shortfall in income due to the number of personal searches now taking place.
They welcomed the news that the turn around time for searches had dropped from fourteen working days
to six and that following pressure, the County Council had also provided extra resources to help in the
searches;

(iv) Looking at the financial implications of the number of staff vacancies and also looking at an Evalua-
tion of the council’'s Recruitment and Retention Strategy. The Panel welcomed progress in attracting train-
ees and having them continue in post once they have been trained and endorsed the Human Resources
section’s shift of focus to sickness management issues;

(v) Examining the Data Quality Audit and the Value for Money Strategy. This assessment had provided
an opportunity to set out an overall corporate approach to ensuring data quality, through the development
of a Data Quality Strategy;

(vi) Considering the Financial Monitoring schedules each quarter in order to monitor the budget and
identify areas of over or under-spending;

(vii) Scrutinising the Comprehensive Performance Assessment Improvement Plan, prior to Cabinet con-
sideration;

(viii) Consideration of the Essex Local Area Agreement and considered the proposed actions and targets
within priority areas of the agreement to be adopted by the Council;

(ix) Assisting the executive on the review of the Council’s Consultation Plan for 2006/07 and expressing
concern that the limited consultation proposed for the council’'s waste strategy did not meet the standards
set out in the consultation strategy because of time and resource constraints;

(x) Examining the Value for Money Analysis for 2005/06. In order that this massive piece of work be
studied in detail the panel set up a sub-group, of three members, which is due to make recommendations
to the next meeting of the Panel; and

(xi) Considering the draft Portfolio Budgets for 2007/08 and the revised four year forecast including the
proposed level of Council tax increase for 2007/08 and receiving the Fees and Charges proposed for
the forthcoming financial year (2007/08). The Panel endorsed the recommended council tax increase of
3.5% but expressed concern about the rising cost of waste management and diminishing level of reserves
predicted in the four year forecast. It has requested a report on the council’s land and accommodation

strategy.
e
17 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007

Page 41



N

SCRUTINY

ENVIRONMENTAL AND PLANNING
SERVICES STANDING PANEL

Introduction by Chairman:

“We meet on six occasions throughout the year and shaped
policy on some of the most significant issues facing the lo-
cal community. We formulated comments on the Draft East of
England Plan, waste management, traffic issues in rural areas,
the use of Community Wardens and consulted with local coun-
cils, residents and experts from external agencies during the
process.

I would like to thank my Vice Chairman (Councillor Doug Kelly)
for all his help during the year and of course the Lead Officers
for this Panel John Gilbert, Head of Environmental Services
and John Preston, Head of Planning Services and Economic
Development. | would also like to thank all the representatives
from outside agencies, local interest groups, the Local Coun-
cils and members of the public who attended our meetings
and contributed to the discussions ”

Councillor Mrs Penny Smith
April 2007

The Environmental and Planning Services Panel consisted
of the following members:

Councillor Mrs P Smith (Chairman)

Councillor D Kelly (Vice Chairman)

Councillors D Batemen, Mrs D Borton, Mrs A Cooper, D Jacobs, A Lee, G Mohindra, Mrs P Richardson,
Mrs L Wagland and J Wyat.

The Lead officers were John Gilbert, Head of Environmental Services and John Preston, Head of Planning
Services and Economic Development

Terms of Reference
1. To keep under review the activity and decisions of the West Essex Joint Waste Committee.

2.  To consider what changes are practical and desirable to Council policies concerning the reuse of
redundant and other buildings in the Metropolitan Green Belt.

3. To consider the arrangements by which the new Local Development Scheme is being brought into
operation.

e
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007 18

Page 42



AN

SCRUTINY

4.  To consider matters which arise through the process that the Government is driving to bring in an
East Of England Plan.

5. Inthe context of the DERA ‘Cleaner Neighbourhoods Consultation document’ to consider the viability
of employing uniformed wardens, the formulation of a response to the document and the financial conse-
quences of these matters.

6. In relation to Traveller issues to consider and monitor:

(@) the measures previously agreed by the Council to secure the clearance of the top level of the sites
at Paynes Lane and the actions agreed for Birchfield;

(b) the position regarding tolerated sites and;

(c) the management of travellers who enter onto land within the district with a view to unauthorised en-
campments;

(d) Government’s guidance on the needs of travellers in the context of the Council’s review of its District
Local Plan and the Essex Housing Needs Assessment;

(e) the results of the Commission for Racial Equality’s study on traveller issues once published;

(f)  That the draft list of current and past sites within the District produced by Planning Services be com-
pleted and updated and made available to the Environmental and Panel Services Standing Panel.

The Panel scrutinised a number of important issues over the last year, which
included:

(i) Clean Neighbourhoods and Street Wardens - The Panel continued to consider the Clean Neigh-
bourhoods and Environment Act
2005 which enables Local Au-
thorities to issue Fixed Penalty
Notices to deal with litter, fly tip-
ping graffiti and other types envi-
ronmental crime. The Panel heard
from Essex Police and the local
Street Warden Resource Centre
to examine the possibility of using
Street Wardens, our own staff or
Police Community Support Offic-
ers to implement the new powers.

{
:

Some of the Panel visited Col-
chester and Braintree to observe
the work of their street wardens.

They appreciated the role that Some of the Councillor speaking to a Street Warden
they performed but felt that our own local ina housing estate in Colchester is -
19 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007

Page 43



N

SCRUTINY

sues might require a different approach. They balanced this against the high costs of the posts and
decided not to recommend their use in the District. They intend to identify more cost effective and
practical measures to clean up our streets at their next meeting in April 2007 and report their recom-
mendations in the new-year.

(i)  Traffic Issues in Rural Areas - The Panel received a presentation from Keith Lawson of the
Essex County Council who helped scope its review of the various pressures on rural areas. They
took on board local concerns about commercial vehicle activity in Roydon and Nazeing and organ-
ised a focus day for local Members to identify some simple, practical cost effective solutions to the
concerns. They will make recommendations on this in the new year. The issues have been reported
to the Area Highways Manager and the Area Highways Panel which has raised awareness of the
review to secure support.

(iii)y East of England Plan - The Panel helped shape the EFDC response to the Draft East of Eng-
land Plan. They expressed concern about the location and number of new houses identified for our
District and strengthened the case for development at alternative locations. This has since been
incorporated into the latest draft of the plan.

The Panel also pressed for sufficient infrastructure and funding for the proposals and are waiting to
see whether this case has also influenced government thinking.

(iv) West Essex Waste Contract - The Panel continued to monitor the procurement of the West
Essex Waste contract. The Panel will work to ensure that the needs our new recycling service are
taken on board by the process so that our recycling target is achieved.

(vi) Planning Enforcement - Monitoring of Activity- The Panel arranged for regular reports to be
included in the Members Bulletin on current planning enforcement activity. As a result Members
are now able to keep a watchful eye over such investigations and flag up any issues of concern for
investigation and action.

e
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007 20

Page 44



b -
SCRUTINY

The Work of the Task and Finish Panels
2006-2007

e
21 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007

Page 45



N

SCRUTINY

LEISURE TASK AND FINISH PANEL

This panel was set up to consider the four topics for Review as identified by Overview and Scrutiny Com-
mittee i.e.

i) Future management of Waltham Abbey Sports Centre

ii)  Review of the future Management of the Roding Valley Meadows Local Nature Reserve
iii)  Review of Arts Development in the District and

iv)  The District Council’s role and involvement in Outdoor and Community Events.

Under the Chairmanship of Councillor Mrs Harding, they gathered evidence and information in relation to
the four topics through the receipt of data, presentations and by participation in fact finding visits.

They consulted with Partners, Agencies, Stakeholders and Users of the services under review. They es-
tablished key issues and future needs and evaluated all relevant facts in relation to the topics under review
in an objective way and to produce recommendations for future action accordingly for two of the four topics
this year. They sought to establish whether there are any resource implications arising out of the topics
under review and advise Cabinet for inclusion in the Budget Process.

The Leisure Task & Finish Panel consisted of
the following members:

Councillor Mrs H Harding (Chairman)

Councillor Mrs P Brooks (Vice Chairman)

Councillors M Colling, Mrs A Grigg, Mrs J Lea, J Markham, S
Murray, Mrs P K Rush, Mrs P Smith, P Turpin and J M White-
house.

The Lead Officer was Derek Macnab, Head of Leisure Serv-
ices.

Site Visits Undertaken by the Panel

The Panel made various site visits during the year to gain first
hand experience and a feel for the items they were scrutinising.
The Panel visited the Waltham Abbey Sports Centre and Swim-
ming Pool, the Roding Valley Meadows Local Nature Reserve,
the ‘Donny South’ Event at North Weald Airfield, the Copped
Hall Charity Fun Run, and the Ongar Arts and Education Centre
at Great Stoney.

Councillor Heather Harding

Presentations Received/ Consultation undertaken

(1) The Panel received a presentation on the current State of the Arts and Art Development in EFDC by
the Arts Officer, the Dance Development Artist and two community artists who presented an informative
and unusual audiovisual presentation.

e
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007 22

Page 46



AN

SCRUTINY

(2) The Panel also
questioned the Arts/Ac-
tivities Co-ordinator at
Sherrell House (a care
home in Chigwell), the
head of the Ongar Music
School and the manager
of the IC Youth Dance
Group at lvy Chimneys
School;

(3) The panel received
an informative presenta-
tion on his organisation
at the Great Stoney On-
gar Arts and Education Centre by the Director of Theatre Resources;

(4) They received a presentation on the Council’s role and involvement in Outdoor and Community
events from the Council’'s Marketing and Events Manager;

(5) The Head Teacher of King Harold School, the School Bursar and the Chairman of School Governors
for the School were invited to discuss the future management options for the Waltham Abbey Sports Cen-
tre;

(6) The Panel also spoke to a local user of the Roding Valley Meadows Nature Reserve; representatives
from the Roding Valley Liaison Group; the Chairman and some members of the Local Nature Reserve
Management Committee; some representatives from the Essex Wildlife Trust; the Warden of the Roding
Valley Nature Reserve and the Botanical Recorder for Essex. The Panel also talked to EFDC’s Country-
care Manager;

(7) The Lead Officer also met separately with the head of the Grange Farm Trust to discuss the future
management of the Roding Valley Meadows Local Nature Reserve. They currently part own and part fi-
nance the reserve; and

(8) The Panel also received a presentation from Gerry Kehoe, the Council's marketing and Events man-
ager on the value, role and benefits of events to the district. Noting that outdoor events have long since
been a feature of the special character of the Epping Forest District.

Outcome

The Panel has issued an report on the Management of the Roding Valley Nature Reserve where they rec-
ommended that the Essex Wildlife Trust continue to manage the reserve and they be given a contract for
a twenty year period (in order to attract external funding). This would not entail any additional expenditure
on the Council’s side and would ensure the continuation of the reserve’s management. They have also re-
ported on the review of Arts Development in the District. This, however, had thrown up a new avenue to be
explored, that of perhaps outsourcing some of the work currently undertaken by the Council’s Arts Team.
However, this would need a new Panel to be set up to look into the options open to the Council. Finally
they looked at the District Council’s role and involvement in Outdoor and Community Events, they realised

e
23 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007

Page 47



N

SCRUTINY

that the Council should review how it is represented corporately at Events generally, in order to raise its
profile. They also felt that there was some appetite for the Council to produce more of its own events and
that further thought should be given to the running of small community events and the help that the council
could give.

For more information see the report produced by the Task and Finish Panel.

Because of the wide scope of the work this Panel, they have found it impossible to bring the last item on
their remit, the future management of Waltham Abbey Sports Centre to a conclusion in the time scale al-
lotted to them. As a result they have asked the parent Overview and Scrutiny Committee to extend their
timeframe into the new municipal year.

CRIME AND DISORDER TASK AND FINISH PANEL

The Panel sought to consult the Police on pinpointing the areas causing concerns, the PCT to establish the
link between mental health and crime, a fact finding meeting with the Probation Service, the Fire Brigade,
Transport for London and the EFDC Anti Social Behaviour Officer

The Crime & Disorder T&F Panel consisted
of the following members:

Councillor M Cohen (Chairman)

Councillor M Woollard (Vice Chairman)

Councillors D Bateman, P Gode, Mrs A Grigg, Mrs A Haigh, D
Jacobs, R Law, R Morgan, Mrs C Pond, P Spencer, D Stallan
and J Wyatt.

The Lead Officer was John Scott, Joint Chief Executive, Com-
munity Services.

Presentations Received/ Consultation un-
dertaken:

The Panel received presentations from and consulted with:

1) The Divisional Commander for the Police (Western
Division) on EFDC's ability to scrutinise the Crime and Disor-
Councillor Mitchell Cohen der Reduction Partnership.

2 The Director of Public Health, the Lead Commission-

er for Mental Health from the West Essex Primary Care Trust
and the Associate Director from the North Essex Mental Health Partnership Trust to explore the help and
provision given to mental health patients to prevent them engaging in criminal activity.

3) The Fire and Rescue Services who have a part in working with young people to turn them away from
crime.

Outcome

e
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007 24

Page 48



AN

SCRUTINY

The Panel on considering the evidence taken since last July, deliberated and issued a final report in April.
For more information see the Final report produced by the Task and Finish Panel.

LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP (LSP)

The Panel was set up to consider the following:

To consider the set up and operation of the Epping Forest Local Strategic Partnership and formulate rec-
ommendations on its future in light of the government consultation paper ‘Local Strategic Partnerships:
Shaping their Future’ and the Local Government White Paper expected in November 2006.

The Task and Finish Panel consisted of the
following members:

Councillor Mrs M Sartin (Chairman)

Councillor Mrs P Smith (Vice Chairman)

Councillors Mrs S Clapp, Mrs A Cooper, J Demetriou, Mrs J
Lea, A Lee, Mrs J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse.

The Lead Officer was John Scott, Joint Chief Executive,
Community Services.

The Panel expressed a wish to explore the strengths and
weaknesses of the District's LSP and measures to secure
greater community involvement and publicity for its work.

The Government consultation paper sought to pass re-
sponsibility for the LSP to the Council’'s Cabinet and create
a greater role for members and scrutiny in their work to
increase democratic accountability.

Presentations Received/ Consultation un-
dertaken Councillor Mary Sartin

In investigating these issues, the Panel heard from the Princi-

pal of the Epping Forest College in his capacity as the Chair-

man of the local LSP and the Life Long Learning Action Group. They interviewed some of the Action Group
chairs, and appreciated that their groups had added real value to important projects through partnership
working.

They considered the Local Area Agreement (LAA) and received a presentation on the “six — monthly re-
fresh” from the Head of Community Planning and Regeneration for Essex County Council. They consid-
ered the performance management framework funding, and Member involvement in the agreement. They
reviewed the Councils achievements against the five local LAA priorities and fed back comments to secure
them.

e
25 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007

Page 49



=

SCRUTINY

Outcome

In December 2006, a sub—group of the Panel met to draw some conclusions and formulate recommenda-
tions for their final report. They agreed proposals to encourage greater member involvement, a stronger
role for scrutiny, and increased funding for the partnership. The report also proposed that the Chairman
of the Partnership should continue to be appointed by the whole Partnership on personal merit. Their full
report was endorsed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in March 2007 and will be considered by
the Cabinet.

For more information see the Final report produced by the Task and Finish Panel.

SERVICES FOR OLDER PEOPLE AND DISABLED PEOPLE

The Panel was set up to consider the following:

The Task and Finish Panel consisted of the
following members:

Councillor Mrs S Perry (Chairman)

Councillor Mrs J Whitehouse (Vice Chairman)

Councillors D Bateman, Mrs A Cooper, Mrs A Grigg, P House, D
Kelly P Turpin and

K Wright.

The Panel co-opted Kay Ellis as a member. Kay is a member of
the Joint Management Team for Older People.

The Lead Officer was John Scott, Joint Chief Executive, Com-
munity Services.

Presentations Received/ Consultation under-
taken

The Panel received presentations from and consulted with:

Councillor Susan Perry

(1) Members of the Joint Management Team for Older People,
this team consisted of members from different organisations such
as Adult Social Care, the District Council (Housing), Voluntary Ac-
tion Epping Forest, the then Epping Forest Primary Care Trust, a Champion/User Consultant Geriatrician

Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007 26
Page 50



b -
SCRUTINY

and the Mental Health Trust.

(2) The Panel also received reports on services provided by the District Council covering such diverse
aspects as Social Clubs for Older People, reviewing the Council's Handy Person Scheme, the Council’'s
progress towards responsing to the Disability Equality Duty and Concessionary Travel.

The Panel also undertook some visits either on their own or in small groups:

(i) some members a meeting of a Sheltered Housing Forum and took the opportunity to ask questions
and discuss matters of concern.

(i) Some members attended the Parsonage Court Day Club to find out first hand their problems and the
views of those who attended the club.

(i) They attended a meeting of the Older Peoples Advisory Group, which covered a wide range of topics
affecting older people in the District.

(iv) The Chairman of the Panel visited Robert Daniels Court to view their facilities and speak to the resi-
dents.

(v) A number of sheltered Schemes were also visited and the residents concerns noted.

(vi) Some members attended a meeting of the sheltered housing managers, and some went to luncheon
and social clubs.

Outcome

The Panel made a final report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee summarising their findings, com-
menting on the provisions provided and making several recommendations to the Council on how they
could assist the older people and disabled people in the district.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is awaiting with interest the Council’s formal response to the Dis-
ability Equality Duty.

For more information see the Final report produced by the Task and Finish Panel.

TOWN CENTRE AND CAR PARKS TASK AND FINISH PANEL

The Panel was set up to consider the following:

e
27 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007

Page 51



N

SCRUTINY

Anti-social behaviour in car parks;

(vii) the extent of anti-social behaviour in car parks and the action taken to date;
(viii) the various technical solutions available should closure of car parks be a necessary solution.

The Task and Finish Panel consisted of the fol-
lowing members:

Councillor M Colling (Chairman)

Councillor Mrs R Gadsby (Vice Chairman)

Councillors K Angold-Stephens, Mrs P Brooks, J Demetriou, P
Gode, P Macmillan, Mrs P Richardson, D Stallan, M Woollard and
K Wright

The Lead Officer was John Gilbert, Head of Environmental Serv-
ices.

Presentations Received/ Consultation under-
taken

(1) Free Saturday Car Parking

Councillor Matt Colling The Panel looked at proposals to provide Free Saturday Car Parking
in the Council’s long stay and combined car parks, which is a key
commitment of the Cabinet. They supported the recommendations

in principle but requested that the regime be subject to operational review. The Cabinet accepted this ad-
vice. Some members subsequently called in the decision to make sure the financial arrangements were
sound (as highlighted in the call-in section on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee) and, as a result, the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee have asked the Portfolio Holder to formulate suitable monitoring ar-
rangements for the Committee to pursue. He reported his proposals to the March Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

(2) EFDC Parking Contract

The Panel held two meetings to explore proposals
for the renewal of the Council’s car parking contract.
They heard from consultants and considered a re-
port of their findings based on their knowledge of
best value and practice. The Panel formulated rec-
ommendations to balance the need for both a cost
effective and high quality new service. Their propos-
als have since been endorsed by Cabinet.

Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007 28
Page 52




AN

SCRUTINY

(3) Development Potential of Council car parks

As requested by the Cabinet in April 2006, the Panel investigated the development potential of a number of
Council owned car parks. They heard from the Councils consultants, ‘Bidwells’ and asked them to investi-
gate further proposals for the development of two of the sites. They stressed the need for this to provide an
element of public parking for local residents and customers to support the growth of our local economy.

The Panel spoke to officers from Parking Associates Ltd and also the EFDC Parking Manager who advised
on the current state of the car parks and what options were open to them in the future.

The Panel still has to look at measures available and the latest guidance on dealing with the problem of
anti-social behaviour in car parks. They will continue with this important piece of work in the new-year.

Outcome

The Panel endorsed the idea of free Saturday car parking for certain council run car parks in the district,
and this has now been acted upon. They also got an assurance that this will be reviewed in twelve months
time.

Having made the above recommendation to cabinet the Panel has asked the parent Overview and Scru-
tiny Committee to extend their timeframe into the new municipal year as they consider town centres and
anti-social behaviour in car parks.

For more information see the report produced by the Task and Finish Panel.

TRAVELLER ISSUES

The Task and Finish Panel consisted of the
following members:

Councillor P McMillan (Chairman

Councillor Mrs D Borton (Vice Chairman)

Councillors Mrs P Brooks, Mrs D Collins, K Faulkner, Mrs P
Smith, Mrs S Stavrou, T Richardson and J M Whitehouse.

The Lead Officers were John Gilbert, Head of Environmental
Services and Mr John Preston, Head of Planning Services and
Economic Development.

Summary

This Panel continued from last year into June of 2006. It was set
up in May 2005 to look at arrangements for dealing with unau-
thorised development on traveller’s sites in the District and ar-
rangements for tolerated sites and policy issues.

The Panel undertook a tour of the District viewing existing and ex Councillor Peter McMillan

e
29 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007

Page 53



AN

SCRUTINY

traveller sites, tolerated sites and occasional stopping sites to gather first hand evidence. The Panel
engaged in a discussion with residents to obtain their views and attended a seminar on Travellers
to consider the latest guidance. The Panel had produced an initial report in September 2005 recom-
mending steps to secure and clear the Paynes Lane site at Nazeing.

The Panel looked at three tolerated sites in the District and reviewed whether the approach for such
sites should be changed and also wider policy issues regarding traveller needs.

Outcome

The Panel agreed that these issues required detailed consideration in the light of recent govern-
ment guidance and a longer-term commitment by members to address this issue. As a result it had
concluded that the matter be referred to the Environmental and Planning Services Standing Panel
who were able to give the longer term issues their consideration.

e
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007 30

Page 54



AN

SCRUTINY

CONCLUSION

This is the second year of the new scrutiny system at Epping
Forest District Council, and a year when members have been
asked to look at all sorts of various and diverse subjects, rang-
ing from Housing to Car Parking; from Leisure and Nature Re-
serves to Finance and Budgets; taking in the Constitution and
Environmental and Planning items, Crime and Disorder, Older
Persons, Disable Persons, Town Centres and the Local Strate-
gic Partnership, Epping Forest College, the Essex Police Merg-
er with Bedford and Hertfordshire and the draft Council Plan for
2006-10, along the way. And of course, there was the important
matter of scrutinising the Cabinet’s work.

This not only kept our members very busy during the year but
also gave them a deeper insight into the everyday workings
of the council and a sense of ownership of the Council’s deci-
sions. The resource of Overview and Scrutiny for this council is
proving itself to be very valuable in enabling decisions, strate-
gies and policies to be examined in detail before they are imple-
mented, helping to reduce the number of call-ins. This enables
a more informal and | think a more effective form of scrutiny to
take place prior to the decisions being taken.

There were two call-ins this year, neither was supported by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the
original decisions stood. It was pleasing to see that these were made on points of principle rather than
political point scoring. The Standing Panels have once again proved their worth by concentrating on one
service or a particular aspect of the council in depth and keeping a continuing eye on cyclical and annual
issues.

The Task and Finish Panels had a mixed success this year, two of the five panels could not complete their
allotted tasks within the time frame set at the beginning of the year and may be re-established into the new
year. However, that does mean that three Task and Finish Panels have successfully fulfilled their terms of
reference and have submitted final reports to the parent Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Perhaps this
shows the limits of the amount of work our O&S system can cope with and perhaps a more modest work
programme should be sought in the New Year.

It was pleasing to note that the Overview and Scrutiny panels were not just contained within the Council
Offices, they have been more community focused and have gone out to meet and talk to the public.There
have been a good number of positive outcomes that are demonstrated in this report that prove the undeni-
able success of scrutiny for the Epping Forest District.

If you have any comments or feedback on the contents of this report (whether you are a member of the
public, a councillor or an officer of the council) please let Adrian Hendry, in Research and Democratic
Services know, by emailing him on: ahendry@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

John Scott
Joint Chief Executive (Community Services)

e
31 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007

Page 55



SCRUTINY

Epping Forest District Council

Report designed and Produced by the Overview and Scrutiny Team.
Thanks to all member contributors

Further copies of this report can be obtained from:
Research and Democratic Services
Epping Forest District Council

Civic Offices
High Street

Epping

Essex CM16 4BZ

If you are interested in scrutiny at the Council please log onto our webpages at:
www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/local_democracy/Scrutiny_home.asp

Our meetings are webcast for more information see:

http://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/local_democracy/Webcasts.asp

e
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2006-2007 32

Page 56



Agenda Item 8

As requested at the 8 March OSC, the Chairman and the Vice — Chairman of the
Panel met on 22 March 2007 to formulate the 2007/08 OS Work Plan. The meeting
considered a first draft of the plan containing outstanding items from the current year
and bids submitted for the new plan.

New bids for 2007/08 Work Plan

Q) The Provision of Value for Money - S Tautz - Senior Performance
Manager

The Group agreed that a Task and Finish Panel be established to deal with this
review.

(2) Communication and Access to Information within this Council and
between Essex County Council — Councillor Mrs A Cooper

The Group sought clarification of the issues raised in the request. On receipt of this
consideration could be given to how it should be dealt with. ACTION Officer to
contact Councillor Cooper , request to be including on pending requests list.

3) Youth Initiatives Scheme -request made by Cabinet on 2 February 2007

The Group agreed that the bid should be submitted to the Task and Finish Panel on
Leisure Services to be reconstituted for 2007/08.

4) Role of Rural Transport in the District — Councillor H Harding

The Group felt that the bid should be referred to the County Council for perusal by
their Scrutiny Committee for the service. It was felt that their Members would be more
able to influence the matter and secure a positive outcome bearing in mind the
service fell within the County’s remit.

(5/6) Parking on Grass Verges/Residential areas - Councillors K Angold —
Stephens, R Frankell

The Group felt that the requests should be allocated to the Environmental and
Planning Standing Panel. The Group felt that the work should focus on pursuing the
recommendations of the 2005/06 Task and Finish Panel on Residential Parking
which explored the issues raised by the bids in-depth. This would avoid any
duplication of work. The findings of the Panel could be submitted to the six monthly
review of the plan suggested below in point 9.

@) Collection of Green/Food Waste — Councillor R Frankell

It was questioned whether the Portfolio Advisory Group on Waste Management was
currently looking at the issues raised by the bid. In view of this the group questioned
the need to set up another review of the issues. It was agreed that clarification be
sought of the remit of the PAG to identify whether its ambit covered the concerns
and, if not, the feasibility of the group taking them on. Another option was to refer the
bid to the Environmental and Planning Services Standing Review. ACTION Officers
agreed to speak to the Head of Environmental Services.

Page 57



(8) Customer Care — Issues from disbanded ICT Standing Panel —
Councillor J Whitehouse

It was noted that Councillor Whitehouse had raised the need for the customer
services aspects of the disbanded ICT Standing Panel to be allocated to a suitable
Panel for ongoing consideration. It was proposed that the issues be taken on by the
Finance and Performance Management Standing Panel

(9) Six monthly review

The Group felt that OSC should review its recommendations on a six monthly basis
to identify achievements and whether follow action was required to secure them .
The Group also felt that the OSC should monitor the Free Saturday Car Parking
regime on a half yearly basis and that this task should be carried out at the review
meeting.

This meeting considered concerns and suggestions raised by Councillor Mrs J
Whitehouse on how the operation of scrutiny could be improved. The Group agreed
that the work be held in abeyance for the time being and picked up during the six —
monthly review.

Outstanding 2006/07 Work Plan Items
(@) Standing Panels

The meeting requested that the Housing, Constitution and Members Services,
Finance and Performance Management and Environmental and Planning Services
Standing Panels be reconstituted for 2007/08. It was reiterated that the ICT and
Customer Services Panel should be disbanded and the Customer Services related
aspects of its work be added to the Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny
Panel for ongoing consideration.

(b) Task and Finish Panels
Leisure

It was agreed that the Panel should be disbanded and reconstituted afresh for
2007/08 to complete their work.

(c) Car Parking

The Group noted that the Panel had completed all of its work save the item on anti
social behaviour in car parks. The Group questioned whether the Panel should be

reconstituted to deal with this item. It was agreed that the views of the Chairman of
the Panel be sought on this question.

(b) Crime and Disorder/Older and Disabled People/LSP Panel

It was anticipated that these Panels would hold their final meeting to complete their

work before the end of this year. In view of this it was noted that the Panel would be
disbanded by the end of this year.

Page 58



8002 |udv T2
Arenuer zz
‘2002 1990100 52
‘AInc g

ludy o€

800Z/.00Z buunp Bulobuo

"'S9WOH JuadaQ uo 1abie)]

ybiH LVSd Bunaaw uo ssaibold (0T)

800¢/,00¢ buunp buiobuo ‘ue|d uonay Absrens
ybiH BuisnoH 10108 arealld (6)

/002 1snbny ',002 Ad1j0d @ouelsIssy

ybiH BuisnoH awajdw (8)

800¢ |udy ue|d

ybiH | ssauisng vyH Welp parepdn (1)

800z |udy | ue|d uonoy BuisnoH d1bar1ens uo

wnipa uoday ssaiboid Ajlyuow-xis (9)

800z Arenuer

ueld
uonoy ue|d ssauisng BuisnoH uo

wnipay | Hoday ssaiboid Ajyauow-xis ()

/002 1290190 aWwaydS suoneao||y
ybiH | BuisnoH ay1 Jo mainay [enuuy (1)

ue|d uondy

1002 1990190 BuisnoH a16arens % wuawarels
ybiH ABarens BuisnoH yelq ()

1,002 Ainc sjueljddy BuisnoH Jo malnay

wnipay Buuoyuo 21Uyl fenuuy (2)

8/,002 Ul Bulobuo sbuma paseg
ybiH 2210y Jo uoneluaswsajdwi (T)

BuisnoH

S|laued buipuels

sbunsay ain1ng
Jo awwelbolid

sjuawwo)/ssalboud

Aiolid/aulpeaq 1oday

wal|

80/,.00¢ awweliboid YIoM Aunnidos pue malAIBAQ UeId

80/.00Z — awweiboid Y10\ AUIINIOS pue M3IAIBAQ Meld

Page 59



8002 |udvy 82
‘Areniged 2T
‘2002 41890100 TT
‘AInc 0g

‘aunc g

‘ludy 8

/002 udy

|090104d JO uone|nwio4 — sbunasiy
[1oUno) 1e awi] uonsand manN (9)

suonod|3 2002 A\ Jo maInay (G)

suonenis
Aouabiaw3 ul suonelado 1ouiged ()

M3INDY Bulurel] Jaquwiai (1)

suonesiuebiQ
3pPISINO U0 |020101d JO MaIAaY (£)

,00¢

|lidy 8 Uo paJsapIsu0d aq 0] suonenBay [eloueul

s1apiO Buipuels
19B1U0D JO MaIASY enuuy (2)

sdiysiauned a1barens a0

3194 [el0109|3

uondYy o4 |ed

Alunwwo) Bulpnjpul SO 01 sabuey)d
:Jaded auypn uswuIBA09) 207 (T)

|aued BulpuelS Sa2IAI8S JaquIsj\ pue uolnIsuo)

sbunasy aininH
Jo awwelbold

sjuawWwon/ssalboid

Alolid/aulipeag
1loday

way

80/,.00¢ awweliboid YIoM Aunnidos pue malAIBAQ UeId

Page 60



8002 |udy

ez ‘Aeniga4 gz
/002 18qwiadag 0g
‘18010190 62
‘Jaqwiaidas g

‘aunr oz

‘ludy 92

‘paJinbal
uonoe Mmoo} Aue Auapi ‘Aressadau Ji ‘pue sealy
[enuapisay ul Bupjied uo |aued ysiui4 pue yse|

BalY [enuapisay ul Bunpjred

90/S00Z @Y1 JO suolepuswwoal ay) Jojuow o] *NTLl MIN« /sabla sseis uo Bupjred (8)
‘lel; yluow xis Buimojjoy [aued ayl
AQ pamainal pue unajng slaquiay ul siseq Jejnbal
© uo pauodal ag 01 "900Z 1870100 OE UO [aued ay) S8W02IN0/saINB1 JUSWSI0US JO
AQ paJapisuod sjuswabuelse Buniodal pue sansneis Buiobuo | Buloyuow — aduewliolad Buluuel|d (1)
Punaaw aininy 01 paniwgns aq 0} Joday Buiobup sanss| Jg|jaAel] buiobup (9)
suoisinold Jo uoneluaswas|dw|
— G00Z 19V 1UswWUuoIIAUTg
Aemiapun ,00¢ |udy pue spooylnoqybiiaN uea|D ()
sjesodoud Jo Arewiwins uo pajuswiwod 21|gNd Ul uoneuiwex3 0} asuodsay
,00¢ Arenuer 97 uo Bunasaw :Aemiapun D43 — ue|d pue|bu3 jo 1se3 (v)
‘'sealy bulazeN
‘laued AQ palapisuod ag 01 S}Nsay 'Sanss! Ajnuapi pue uopAoy ayl ul sanss| Jijel] ndg
01 /00Z YdJten / loj paaibe Aep snooH — Aemiapun BuiobuQ uaal9) ayp ul sbulipjing Jo asn ay (g)
BuiobuQ awayds swdojanaq 207 maN (2)
3|ge|reAe awo02aq Aayl
UBUYM pue se aapiuwo) Juswabeue JUIOL 31SeA $S9201d Juawainoold
X9SS3 1S9\ U1 JO SUOISIDap J8pISU0d 0} |aued Bulobuo a1seM\ uior Aiuno) xass3 (T)

|]aued Buipuels sa2IA1as Buluue|d pue [eluswuodIAuS

sbunasy aininH
Jo awwelbold

sjuawWwon/ssalboid

Alolid/aulipeag
1loday

way

80/,.00¢ awweliboid YIoM Aunnidos pue malAIBAQ UeId

Page 61



JeaA redidiunw 80//00¢ 10 RIS WOJ) 32U3LILWOI 0]
suonoe Buipurisino Jo Bullonuow asuewlouad Auauend

BuiobuQo

Buliolnuo adsuewIoLad
— ueld uswanoidwi vdd (0T)

800z Arenige4 TT
‘Arenuer T

‘,00¢C 19qWaNoN €T
snbny T

‘aunrC 6T

800¢ 19bpng (6)

Teak redidiunw 80/2002
JO elS WOl 9duswwod 01 Buliojiuow aduewliouad renuuy

Bulionuoy adsuewIOLSd
0T02-9002 Ue|d [1PunoD (8)

TeaA [edioiunw 80/.00¢ J0
1elS WoJl aduswwod 01 Bunoluow aduewlouad Ajjauend)

Buiobup

Bulioluo aduewIoad
— Sluswaalby ealy €207 (2)

ue|d upny [enuuy (9)

sobrey) pue [e207 JO MaInay (S)

Buiobupo

(uonei10y uil pasiunnios
aQ 0] S92IAIBS) douewlolad (¥)

BuiobuQo

Burionuo [eroueulq Auauend (g)

Buiobupo

Allauend — sioredipu|
Burionuo asurwliolad Aoy (2)

'2002 Arenigad 2T
uo paalbe ddAg |Ind 1o uoneiapisuod Joj syuswabuely

80/.,00¢
ue|d aouewlIolNad anfeA 1sag (T)

|]aued Buipuels Juswabeuely aoueWwIolad pue adueul

sbunasy aininH
Jo awwelbold

SjuaWwwo)/ssalboid

Allolid/aulpeaq
1loday

way

80/,.00¢ awweliboid YIoM Aunnidos pue malAIBAQ UeId

Page 62



|[aued
12| pue Jawoisn) papueqsip
Jlapun Ajsnoinaid swall = 4

Yoeqpasa) dnous Bujiop

S99IAISS JaW0ISND uo sliodas ssalboid pasodoid

(9T) @85 Buiobup

wa) MaN ,002 |1idy S892IAI8S Jawo01sndx (9T)
uonenfeAs buipuad anunuod 01 paalbe 19aloid
‘Biw 200g AInC 16 paluasald ag 01 uonenjeAs Jayling 100z AInt 1093l01d Bunseasgop. (ST)
Bunasaw A1ons 01 swweibold uonewiojsuel| MO|aq

311Ud) 12e1U0D IBWOISN)D, (VT)

1,00z Areniga4 gz uo DSO Ag swuwreiboid 01 pappy

aouewlopad — s19ssy pue (€T)

sabuey) pue saa4 (21)

Ieak

yoea Jo Bunaauwi 1sii 18 pPaIsapIsuod aq 0] ue|d uoneynsuo)d

/00¢ sunr 01 malnay
[enuuy — BulobuQ

ue|d uone)nsuo) [enuuy (TT)

sbunea aining
Jo swwelbold

Sjuswwo)n/ssalboud

Aulond/aulipesd
1Joday

wal|

80/,.00¢ awweliboid YIoM Aunnidos pue malAIBAQ UeId

Page 63



vdal

» W31 MBN«

vdal

2WaYoS SaAleniu|
YinoA jo Bunioliuon ()

‘Biw Arenuer 1oj pajNPayds uoneluasald :Aemiapun

£00g aung/Aey

SJUSA3 AlluNnWIWo)
pue JoopINQ ul JUSWIA|OAUI
pue 8|0y s J1ouno) 1sia ()

pabuelre ag 0] MalAaJ 10} alep [euld :Aemiapun

,00¢ aung/Rey

1011SI3 9yl Ul
1uswdojanaq SuV JO Malnay (£)

*/00Z Areniga4
J0J pauue|d uopuoT Jo uoneiodiod pue 1snil wie-

abuels yum Bunssw euld 'a18|dwod Ajgbire :Aemiapun

,00¢ aung/Rey

9AI8S9Y alnjeN [ed07] SMOpeaN
A3|leA Buipoy ay Jo 1uswabeue
alnin4 Jo maInay (2)

SM3IA Ssalpog Buluianos Buniemy ‘jooyds ybiH
pjoJeH Bury yum usxeuspun uoneinsuo) Aemisapun

£00¢ aung/Aey

alua) suods Aaqqy weylemm
10 uswabeue|y ainind (1)

¥Jom Jo uona|dwod 10} pajeisulal aq 01 — SAJIAISS 9INSIa

Ss|aued ysiul4 pue yse|

sbunasy aininH
Jo awwelbold

SjuaWwwo)/ssalboid

Ri1olid/eulpeaq

1loday

way

80/,.00¢ awweliboid YIoM Aunnidos pue malAIBAQ UeId

Page 64



"10BJJU0D SBJIAIBS 8INSIaT [eulalx]
ay1 Joj preog Buuonuow ayl woul suodal senbal e
sIeak ainin) pue 90/S00¢ 10! sisAjeuy ASuon
10} anfeA Jo aAndayd ay) Buisealoul Jo SKep\ e
aouewlopad ul sjuswaAoldw| e
suoneoldde
Buiuue|d jo Bopjoeq aonpal 01 UOIJR JO SSAJ2INS e
:JapIsuod 0} dn 18s |aued MaN

(uonouny saoinlas Buluue|d)
[0J1U0D 1WawdojaAa@ ayl ulylm
Aauouw 10} anfeA Jo uolisinold

[aued ysiul4 pue }se| MaN — S82IAI8S Buluue|d ulyim ASUoly 10} anjeA Jo UoISInoId

80/,.00¢ awweliboid YIoM Aunnidos pue malAIBAQ UeId

Page 65



Page 66

"wiall siyy a19)dwod
0] PalNIIISU09al ag PINOYS [aued ayl Jayiaym uo ybnos
aQ [aurd 8yl JO 192110 peaT pue uewlieyd ayl Jo SMaIA
vdal | 8yl eyl paisanbal yarew ge uo Bunssw Buluue|d SO ayl

ybiH

syled
Ied ul InolAeyag [e100S Nuy

[aued ysiui4 pue yse] syied Jed pue anua)d uUmo|

80/,.00¢ awweliboid YIoM Aunnidos pue malAIBAQ UeId



‘pajgesIp ay) pue suosiad
1ap|o 01 salpuabe Alejun|oa
pareinosse pue |1IounoY SIyl
vdal 0S0 200z |1dY § 10} paje|dwod aq 0| Aq papinoid sa2IMIBS Jo MaINSY

/00Z aung ul anp 1odal [eul Jo uonajdwod Buimojjo) papueqsip ag 01
— |aued ysiul4 pue yse] suosliad pajgesiq pue 1ap|0

suollepuswwoday
pue Malnay JUSWUIBA0D)
/002 |udy DS0 L00Z dung G 1o} pa3a|dwod aq o) podal [eul — 866T 10V 19pJ0sIQ pue awlD

/00Z aung ul anp 1odal [eul Jo uonajdwod Buimojjo) papueqsip ag o1
— |aued ysiul4 pue yse] laplosig pue swiid

sbunasy aininH Al1olid/aulpeaq
Jo awwelbold sjuawwo)/ssalbold 1loday woal|

80/,.00¢ awweliboid YIoM Aunnidos pue malAIBAQ UeId

Page 67




0T

8002 |1dy 0T
‘YoreN 9

‘Arenuer T

/002 Jaquiadag €T
JaqWaAoN 8
1870100 v

1snbny og

‘Ainc 21

‘aunt /

udy g

DSO SIY} Je paIapisuod ag 01

£00Z udy

ue|d 310N\
SO 80/.002 Jo uone|nwio (6)

DSO SIY1 18 paIapIsuod ag 0|

80/,002Z |Udy

uoday fenuuy SO (8)

£00¢ 19q0120

ue|d }I0M JO M3IADY

suodai ssalboud

— Bunyjred 1e) Aepinyes aalH
suolepusawWWo9al

SO Jo BulioliuoN

- malnal Alyiuow XIS (2)

,00¢2 Ainp

ue|d
pJemiod 1aulge) Jo Aunnios (9)

aAneniu| buioijod pooyinoqybiaN
— 99I1|0d Xass3 Jo Aunnuos (g)

siseq [enuue ue uo 3aIWWo)D
a1 01 1odai 01 palAul 8g saAleIUasaldal ay) eyl paalby

saAeuasaldal Da43

[9A3] JaquWIB|\ pue uewlireyd

10 Aunnios — diysiauued
J16arens [e207 158104 buidd3 ()

‘uonesiuebio
J1oJ uawarels Abarens mau ssnasip 01 SO 200z Udy §
SIY} puaye 0} Sewoy] uaply 10d X8sS3 1S9/ JO uewliey)

10d
— salpoq pasiuehio Jo Aunnios (g)

wawaalby 92IAI8S
[e207 sAemybiH Jo Aunnias (2)

,00¢ |aunr

P11 punoJbiapun
uopuo jo Aunnias (T)

aanIwwo) Aunnios pue MalAIsAQ

80/,.00¢ awweliboid YIoM Aunnidos pue malAIBAQ UeId

Page 68



	Agenda
	5 MINUTES
	7 2006 - 07 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report
	annual report final version V3

	8 WORK PROGRAMME MONITORING
	Draft OS Work Plan - 2007- 08


